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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR. 'S REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Sole Shareholder of Neinor Homes, S.L.U.:

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Neinor Homes,
S.L.U. and Subsidiaries (“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity, consclidated statement of cash flows and notes to the consolidated financial
statements for the annual period then ended.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent’s directors are responsible for preparing the accompanying consolidated financial
statements so that they present fairly the consolidated equity, consolidated financial position
and consolidated results of Neinor Homes, S.L.U, and Subsidiaries in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and the other
provisions of the regulatory financial reporting framework applicable to the Group in Spain
(identified in Notes 2.a and 2.b to the accompanying consolidated financial statements) and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the audit regulations in force in
Spain. Those reguiations require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consoclidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the preparation by the
Parent’s directors of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal contrel. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated equity and consolidated financial position of Neinor
Homes, S.L.U. and Subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016, and their consolidated results and
their consolidated cash flows for the annual period then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and the other
provisions of the regulatory financial reporting framework applicable to the Group in Spain,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The accompanying consolidated directors’ report for the annual period ended at 31
December 2016 contains the explanations which the Parent’s directors consider appropriate
about the situation of Neinor Homes, S.L.U. and Subsidiaries, the evolution of their business
and other matters, but is not an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. We
have checked that the accounting information in the consolidated directors’ report is
consistent with that contained in the consclidated financial statements for 2016, Qur work
as auditors was confined to checking the consolidated directors’ report with the
aforementioned scope, and did not include a review of any information other than that
drawn from the accounting records of Neinor Homes, S.L.U. and Subsidiaries.
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NEINOR HOMES, s.L.U.

AND SUBSIDIARIES (NEINOR HOMES GROUP)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AT 31 DECELMBER 2016 AND 31 DECEMBER 2016

{Thousands of Euros)
ASSETS Heles 31.12.16 ILT215(Y) EQUHTY AND LEARUILTIES Holes 218 Jid2.45¢{)
HON-CURRENT ASSETS: £QUITY:
irdangitta assels T 754 23 | Share capitsl 123297 929878
Piopedy, glant and equ'pment 8 185 1422 | Legalresens a23 -
Investrent properdy 9 12883 11.010 | Rasenes of tha Parent 7230 573
Hongierent Enancal assels 1A 338 93 | Resenas ol Ry conscdated compan'es (103,145}, {28.971}
Defertediar assals 20 - - Consofdalad preft (o8} o thayear 3057 (70.8551
Tolal non-curreal 258ets 13536 12.623 Toleteqisty 15 §31.012 240.614
HON-CURRENT LIABALIMES:
Bank bamaaings 17 25623 -
Oher nen-oxment FatSes 18 24 §5
Defervedtar Fakidas 20 32 -
Total ron-current Fabiite s 26978 &5
CURRENT ASSETS:
Imertanies 12 025355 933290 | CURRENT LIABILIMES:
Trada and o'ther recenables 13 20553 35702 | Pinisizns 16 2059 13830
Cument Enanctal assels 11 23 45 | Bank b wings 173nd 23 277.053 52992
Tacrecehaties i) 9.050 34 460 | Gher oxfentinancial batithes 17and 21 223 25
Cashand cash equba’enis 14 45301 80 389 | Parattes b so'e sharghotdar 23 3071 £9.030
Conentrade and ciher payaties 19and 23 32693 70423
Tacpayables 20 4404 4739
Qrher oxrentlatiites 12and 18 31251 13£390
Tolal current assels 1.000.293 1.092.826 Total current FabEfes 357834 254930
TOTAL ASSETS 1015828 1.105.509 TOTAL ECHATY AND LIABILITIES 1.046.828 1,105.508

("} Presenlzd ust for comparative pivposes.

The actampenying Hales 1o 29 and Appendicl are an lategral ar of thg oonselidatad batance sheetat 31 Decsmber 2096,




NEINOR HOMES, 8.L.U.
AND SUBSIDIARIES (NEINOR HOMES GROUP)

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 BECEMBER 2016 AND FOR
THE 6 MONTHS PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
{Thousands of Euros)

Pariod & months
ended period ended
31 Becember | 31 December
Hotes 2016 2015(")

Hetrevenues 22ang23 228565 134.688
Costofsales 22 and 23 {205.360} {164.871)
Emplayee banehits expanses 22 (11.677) {4.808}
Depreciation and amortisafian charges 7,8andQ {6G8) (270}
Edemal senices 22 (40.198) {25.536)
Chzange in trade prowdsions 22 34595 {68.618)
Cther operating galnsilesses) 3704 781
PROFIT 1 {LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 9.021 {69.634)
Impairment and galnsifosses) on disposals of non-current assels g ) -
Finance revenue 108 27
Finance cosis 17 and 23 (4.999} [GEES
PROHT 1 {LOSS) BEFORE TAX 4.128 £76.251)
Ineome tax 20 {3.071) {615)
PROFIT }{LOSS} FOR THE YEAR 1.057 {70.866)
Earningslosses) per share {(Euros)
Baslc 3 0,001 (0,675}
Diluted 6 0.001 {0,075}

(*} Presented just for comparative purposes.

Tre accompanying Noles 1 1o 29 and Appendixi are an Integral part of the consolidated
Income statementfor the period ended 31 Decamber 2016,




NEINOR HOMES, s.L.U.

AND SUBSIDIARIES (NEINOR HOMES GROUP)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 AND FOR
THE 6§ MONTHS PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Thousands of Euros)
Period 6 months
ended pericd ended
31 December | 31 Decamber
Notes 216 2045 ')
COHSOLIDATED PROFIT /{LOS S} FOR THE YEAR 1057 [70.868)
OTHER RECQZHIZED INCOME (EXPENSES) R
[TERSS HOT SUBJECT TO RECLASSIFICATION TO INCOME STATEISENT - .
HEMS SUBJECT TO RECLASSIFICATION TO ICOME STATEMENT -
TOTAL RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE 1057 {70.868)
a} Altricutatie to the Parent 1.057 (70.8686;
) Allriculatia to non-canlrolling interests - -
{*) Presentsd just for comparative purpases.
The accompansing Motes 11029 and Appendix| are an Integral par of the censolidated
statemen's of recognised Inceme and expense for the perlod ended 31 December 20146,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES iN EQUITY
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 AND FOR
THE 6 MONTHS PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMEER 2016
(Thousands of Euros)
Other Reserves Consofidated
Share Legal reservesof [alconsolidated profiliess Total
capital reserve the Parenl Loinpantes for the year equity
Balance at 30 June 2015 %) 9838.878 {60) 127.108) {11.248} 901,464
Distributien of prefitioss for the year:

Ta reserves . . 713} (10.535) 11.248 .
Incomelexpanse recognised in the pericd - - - - {70.866) {70.866)
Glher - - 1.34% 8670 - 10.018
Balance at 31 December 2M5 {*) 938.878 - 573 {28.971) {70.866) 840,514
Distribution of profitloss for the year:

To ressmves - 823 7.407 (79.096) 70.868 -
income/expense recognisedin the period - - - - 1.057 1.057
Reductions of capital (Note 15) {2910.581) - - - - (210.581}
Clhar (Mote 15.¢) - - - 78 - (78]
Balanca at 31 Decamier 2016 729.297 823 7.9580 {118.145) 1.057 631.012

(*)} Presentad just for comparslive purposes.

The accompanying Hotes 1 to 29 and Appendix| are an integral par ofthe consolidated
statements of changes In equity for the period ended 31 Degember 20185,




NEINOR HOMES, S.L.U.
AND SUBSIDIARIES (NEINOR HOMES GRQUP)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND FOR
JHE 6 MONTHS PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(Thousands of Eurcs)

Period 6 months
ended period ended
3 Becember | 31 Dacember
Holes 2016 2015 {*}
Cash flows fromi{used in} oporaling activities
Profitiitoss) from operations 4.128 (75.251;
Adjustmenls:
Deprecialion and amortisation 7.8and 668 270
Change In pigrislons §,12and 16 12377 16.442
Impzirment and gatnsf10$s$es) on disposal of inlangible and tangible assels 2 -
Financa cosls 4.999 6544
Finance revenue {108} (27
Qiher proceeds / (payatles} 16 (7.904) -
Gash Nows oblafned from operations 14102 7,048
Increasei{Decrease) in current assots and lablfities:
Invantorias 12 (3.108) (100.027}
Trade and other recabvables 1t ard 13 40.618 (39.139}
Currentirade and other payatles 1&and 19 (37.739) 5£3.336
Other cisrrent and non-current assels and liabilties 11and 23 17.640 1.202
Income tacpaid 20 790) -
Total net cash Rows from operating activities {1} 36,723 {85.580)
Cash flows from/{used in} investing activities:
Imvestmants in lntanglble andtangible assels 7and8 {1.085) (442;
Investmeants in Investment propaity - -
Invesiments in Group companies and agsociates 11and 23 - (43
Investments In non-current inanclal assets 11 (238) (41}
{nterests collecied 108 7
Dhidends recehed . -
Dispoesals cfinlangivle andtangitle assels 8 59 -
Dispasals of imvestment property 9 - 132,
Disposats of Group companies and assodates - -
Clsgosals of ather current @nd nen-current financial assels 22 -
Total net cash flows from favesting activities (i) {1.134) {348)
Cash flows fromi{used in} inancing activities:
Proceeds frem share capital increases 15 - 1.348
Repayments from share capital reductions 15 (210.581) -
Proceeds from bank berrowings 17 206.648 51.408
Proceeds lrom sole sharghoelder borrowings 23 - 105600
Repayment of sank borrowings 17 (53.974) (11.983}
Repayment of sol¢ shareholder borrowings 17 and 23 (09.001) (6.728)
(nterests paid 17and 23 (9.000) (401)
Dhdends pald - .
Other proceeds/payments r¢lated to financing actiities 17 231 (357)
Total net cash Rows from financing activitias {4 {73.677) 138.285
Hetincreasei{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (f+f1+Il) {44.688) 51,357
Cash and cash equivalents sl beainning of the period 89.389 38.032,
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 45,301 89,389

(*}Presentad justfor comparative purposas.

The accompanying Motes 1to 29 and Appendix | are an integral part of the consolidated
statement of cash flow for the perod ended 31 December 2016,




Transtation of consolidated financial statements originally isswed in Spanish and prepared in accordance with the regulatory financial
reporting framework applicable 1o the Group in Spain (see Notes 2 and 29), In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version

prevails.
Neinor Homes, S.L.U. and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the period ended
31 December 2016 (hereinafter, 2016 period)

Activity of the Neinor Homes Group

Neinor Homes, S.L.U. was incorporated under the name Lion Assets Holding Company, S.L.U. in a deed executed
on 4 December 2014, On 14 May 2015 the Parent changed its name to Neinor Homes, S.L.U. and has moved its
registered address from Edificio Asta, Parque de Actividades Econdmicas Asuaran, Erandio (Vizcaya) to Calle

Ercilla 24, Bilbao (Vizcaya).

The corporate purpose of Neinor Homes, S.L.U., as the Parent, and its subsidiaries (hereinafter, Neinor Homes
Graup or the Group), is to promote, manage and develop all kind of Real Estate operations. The locations where
the different companies of the Group develop their activity are rented.

The Neinor Homes Group was incorporated in the context of the memorandum of understanding entered into in
2014 by Kutxabank, S.A. and the Lone Star investment fund, through its investee Intertax Business, S.L.U, (now
Neinor Holdings, 8.1..U.) for the sale and purchase of a portion of the Kutxabank. Group’s property assets. This
transaction was completed on 14 May 2015 through the transfer by Kutxabank, S.A. to Neinor Holdings, S.L.U. of
all the shares held by the former in Meinor Homes, S.L.U., once the conditions precadent established in the
purchase and sale agresment entered into by the parties on 48 December 2014 had been met. Prior to the
aforementioned date on which the shares were transferred, the Neinor Homes Group was the owner of the
aforementioned properly assets, which were Included either through the direct contribution of these assets or
through the contribution of the shares of certain companiss holding the property assets by certain Kutxabank Group
companies to the two subsidiaries also incorporated for this purpose at the end of 2014, namely Neinor Norte,
S.L.U. (formerly Promoetxe Bizkaia, S.1.U.} and Neinor Peninsula, S.L.U. (formerly Perimstro Hegoalde, S.LU.).
These contributions were made through non-monetary contributions as part of the series of capital increases
carried out in 2014 and 2015 for a total amount of approximately EUR 802.850 thousand. These assets were
contributed at their net book value in the accounting books of the contributors at the date of the contribution
(acquisition cost or net recoverable value, the lower) (see Notes 4.b, 4.¢ and 4.f) and part of the current porifolio of
the Group's real estate assets relates to that transaction (see Note 12).

In addition, and as part of this transaction, on 1 January 2015, all the employess who had been performing the
property group’s development and management tasks at the Kutxabank Group, and the technical and other
resources required to perform this activity, wers transferred to the various Neinor Homes Group companies. In this
ragard, on 14 May 2015, an asset administralion and management agreement was enterad into by the various
Kutxabank Group companies and Neinor Homes, S.L.U. in relation to the property assets owned by the former.
This agreement has an initial seven-year term and may be extended automatically for further one-year periods. As
consideration for these services, the various companies paid remuneration depending on the typs and volume of
the managed assels, plus additional variable remuneration based on suceess, applicable to asset sales and for
performing certain specific related actions, and accruals (see Notes 13, 22.a and 23). The contract can be
terminated early in certain circumstances relating to a change of control at the successful bidder for the contract
involving a competitor of Kutxabank, negligence in the provision of the service or interruption thereof for more than
seven days, except in the svent of fortuitous events or force majeure. Also, in the event of Kutxabank’s loss of




control of entities within the scope of this contract, there is an option for early termination, although the
corresponding compensation for termination is reguiated. At 31 December 2016 and 2015, fourteen and eleven
Group employess, respectively, had been assigned to the provision of these services directly.

The Group therefore formed part of the Kutxabank Group until 14 May 2015 (see Notes 14 and 22), on which date
Neinor Holdings, S.L.U. became the sole shareholder of the Parent. The sole shareholder of this company is
LSREF3 Lion Investments, $.4.r.l., incorporated in Luxembourg (see Note 14), which is a subsidiary of Lone Star
Funds. This matter should be taken into consideration in any interpretation made of the accompanying consolidated

financial statements.

In these circumstances, the Parent is not required o prepare consolidated financial statements for the 2016 and
2015 period since its Group is consolidated on 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 in the Neinor Holdings
Group, being Neinor Holdings, S.L.U. its Parent. The registered address of Neinor Holdings, S.L.U. is Ercilla 24,
Bilbao (Vizcaya). In any case, the Parent's directors availed themselves of the possibility of voluntarily preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Neinor Homes Group for 2015 in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (*EU-IFRSs") and, in conformity with Regutlation
(EC) no 1606/2002 of the European parliament and the board from 19 July 2002, at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

On 9 June 2015, the Sole Shareholder changed the reporting period of the Group, which was established as
beginning on 1 July and ending on 30 June. Subsequently, on 15 December 2015, the Sole Shareholder once
again resolved to change the reporting period, which was established as from 1 January to 31 Dacember, effective
from 31 December 2015. Exceptionally, the Group divided 2015 into two reporting periods of six months ended 30

June and 31 December,

Appendix | includes the detail of the consolidated Group companies and the information related thereto at 31
December 2016 and 2015, prior to the related unifying adjustiments thereof and any adjustments made for the
conversion to International Financial Reporting Standards (EU-IFRSs). The information in Appendix | was provided
by the Group companies and their equity position is reflected in their separate financial statements.

Reorganisation of Kutxabank's Real Estate Group and creation of Neinor Homes, S.L.U,

Following the integration of the three Basque savings banks (BBK, Kutxa and Vital) in 2011, in 2013 the Kutxabank
Group commenced an in-depth reorganisation of its real estate area, which continued in 2014, the most noteworthy
milestone during the process being the sale by Kutxabank to a third party (ultimately the Lone Star investment
fund) of a very significant portion of the real estate assets owned by the various companies in the real estate area.

As has already been discussed, on 18 December 2014, following a long period of negotiation, Kutxabank and a
third party entered into a purchase and sale agreement whereby the former transferred to the latter all the shares
of Neinor Homes, S.L. (formerly and untif 14 May 2015 Lion Assets Holding Company, S.L.), a newly-formed
company incorporated to that effect, which, following a series of corporate transactions and transfers, owned,
directly or indirectly, a significant portion of the aforementioned real estate assets in Kutxabank's real estate area,
and which constituted the main purpose of the aforementioned transaction {Operation Lion). As previously
discussed, at 31 December 2014 Lion Assets Holding Company, S.L.U. had become the owner of these real estate
assets. In any case, the effectiveness of this agreement was subject to the fulfiment of each and every one of the
conditions precedent set forth therein. These clauses were fulfilled in 2016 and on 14 May 2015 the agreement

was finally completed.




In this cennection, in 2014 and in order to transfer to Lion Assets Holding Company, S.L.U., currently Neinor
Homes, 8.L.U., ownership of the real estate assels and other related assets and liabilities subject to this transaction
from the companies that owned them, the latter performed various corporate transactions, which are surmmarised

as follows:

s  Firstly, on 18 December 2014, two companies, Promoetxe Bizkaia, S.1.. and Perimetro Hegoalde, S.L. {(now
Neinor Norte, S.L.U. and Neinor Peninsula, S.L.U. respectively) were incorporated, to which were transferred,
through non-monetary contributions, the aforementioned real estate assels and the shares of Inveriur Las
Lomas, S.L.U., Benalmar Servicios Inmobiliarios S.L.U., Servicios Inmobiliarios Loizaga ll, S.L.U., Fuengimar
Servicios Inmohiliarios, S.L.U., Promociones Costa Argia, S.L.U. (now Promociones Neinor 1, S.L.U.,
Promociones Neinor 2, 5.L.U., Promociones Neinor 3, S.L.U,, Promacionss Neinor 4, S.L.U, and Promociones
Neinor 5, S.L.U, respectively) in the case of Promoetxe Bizkaia, S.L. and the shares of Caja Sur Inmobiliaria,
S.L.U. (now Neinor Sur, S.L.U.) in the case of Perlmetro Hegoalde, S.L.

s  Secondly, and following the incorporation of the aforementioned company Lion Assets Holding Company, S.L.,
the shares of which were subject to the transaction described above, on 26 December 2014 the companies
contributing the real estate assets and other related assets and liabilities subscribed a capital increase thereat,
which was paid in full through a non-monetary contribution of the shares of Promoetxe Bizkaia, S.L. and
Perimetro Hegoalde, S.L. and, accordingly, the aforementioned contributing companies became shareholders

of Lion Assets Holding Company, S.L.

+« On 31 December 2014, the contributing companies transferred to Kutxabank their shares in Lion Assets
Holding Company, S.L. for an amount identical to the value attributed to the contributions described above,
This transaction was fully effective from the aforementioned date and was not subject to any condition

precedent.

o On 11 May 2015, following fulfilment on 30 Aprit 2015 of the condition precedent established in the capital
increase of approximately EUR 86.729 thousand approved on 31 December 2014, Kutxabank, S.A., which at
that date was the sole shareholder of the Parent, approved the completion of the aforementioned capital
increase. This capital increase was fully subscribed and paid by the aforementioned sole shareholder through
the non-monetary contribution of certain real estate assets amounting to approximately EUR 83,835 thousand

and the monetary contribution of the remaining amount.

»  Also, by virlue of the agreements made by the parties in the context of the {ransaction described in Note 1, on
11 May 2015, Kutxabank, S.A. approved another capital increase of EUR 123.000 thousand, which was fully

subscribed and paid in cash by Kutxabank, S.A.

+ Lasily, on 14 May 2015, Kutxabank effectively transferred ownership of the aforementioned companies, once
the conditions precedent associated with the purchase and sale transaction had been fulfilied.

Thus, in particular on 19 Dscember 2014, the contributing companies Harri Iparra, $.A.U. (formerly Neinor Barria,
S.A.U.}, Harri Kartera, S.A.U. (formerly Neinor, 8.A.U.), Harri Hegoalde 1, S.A.U.{formerly Nainor ibérica, S.A.U.),
Harri Hegoalde 2, S.A.U. {formerly Neinor Ibérica Inversiones, S.A.U.}, Yerecial, S.L.U., Harri Inmuebfes, S.A.U.
{formerty Neinor Inmuebles, S.A.U.), Compafia Promotora y de Comercio del Estrecho, S.L.U. coniributed to
Promoetxe Bizkaia, S.L. and Perimetro Hegoalde, S.L.U. certain real estate assets and other related assets the
detail of which is shown below in this section. Subsequently, on 31 December 2014, and following the contribution
of the shares thus acquired of Promoetxe Bizkaia, S.L.U. and Perimetro Hegealde, S.L.U. to Lion Assets Holding
Company, S.L.U., the contributing companies sold to Kutxabank, for this same amount, their shares in Lion Asssts

Holding Company, S.L.U.

These transactions were exempt from VAT pursuant to the provisions of Article 7.1 of Law 37/1992, of 28
December, as they were business assels that constituted independent economic units capable of carrying on
business activity using their own means. The exemption was also applicable to transfer tax.




The detail of the net assets and liabilities contributed in the transactions that took place on 19 December 2014 is

as follows (see the detail by contributing company in Appendix li):

Thousands of euros
Total
contributions
Contributions | Net assets and to Neinor
Contributions |  to Neinor liabilities of Homes,
to Neinor Peninsula, shares S.L.U. and
Norte, S.L.U. S.L.1J. contributed subsidiaries
Assets-
Investments in Group companies -(® 73.246 (73.246) -
Inventories, investment property and advances 278478 379.451 176.430 834.359
Other current assets 26 5.491 29.179 34.696
Total assets 278.504 458.158 132,363 869.055
Liabilities-
Payabie to the Group (4.381) (2.07D) {153.823) (160.275)
Other current liabilities - - (5.618) (5.618)
Total liabilities (4.381) (2.071) (159441} (165.893)
Negative reserves - - 27,078 27.078
Net assets 274.123 456,117 (27.078) 703.162

(*) Contribution amounted to EUR 1 (Note 15).

Basis of presentation of the consolidated financial statements

a) Basis of presentation

The consolidated financlal statements of the Neinor Homes Group for 2016 were prepared by the Parent's
directors at the Board of Directors’ mesting held on 27 February 2017, on the basis of the accounting records
held by the Parent and by the other Neinor Homes Group companies properly adjusted for the conversion to
International Financial Reporting Standards (EU-IFRSs).

On 27 February 2017, the Parent's Board of Directors, considering a possible flotation of the Parent and,
consequently, the possible inclusion of the consolidated financial statements in the corresponding share issue
prospectus, considered it appropriate to include additional descriptive infarmation in certain notes in order to
offer more detailed information for improved reading and comprehension of these consolidated financial
statements, and to include certain disclosures which the applicable financial reporting framework {EU-IFRSs)
only requires from listed companies, as in the case of segmented information (see Note 6). In this connection,
the segmentation criteria used to prepare the aferementioned information were adapted to thase used in the
consolidated financial statements for 2016 (see Note 6). As a result, the consolidated financial statements for
the six-month period ended 31 December 2015 were reissued by the Board of Directors on 27 February 2017,

together with those for 2016.




b)

These consolidated financial staterents were prepared in accordance with international Financial Reporiing
Standards {IFRS) as adopted by the European Union, taking into account all the mandatory accounting policies
and rules and measurement bases considering that the Parent of the Group does not have any debt or equity
instruments traded in a public market and does not file, or is in the process of filing, the conselidated financial
statements with a securities commission or other regulatory organization for the purpose of issuing any class
of instruments In a public market, so that they present fairly the Neinor Homes Group's consolidated equity and
financial position at 31 December 2016, and the results of its operations, the changes in consolidated equity
and the consolidated cash flows in the 12 months period then ended.

However, since the accounting policies and measurement bases used in preparing the Group's consolidated
financial statermnents for 2016 may differ from those used by certain Group companies, the required adjustments
and reclassifications were made on consoiidation to unify such policies and bases and to make them compliant

with International Financial Reporting Standards.

In order to uniformly present the various items that make up the consolidated financial statements, the
accounting policies and measurement bases used by the Parent have been applied to all the companies
included in the scope of consolidation.

The 2016 consolidated financial statements of the Group and the financial statements of the Group companies
have not yet been approved by their respective sole shareholders. Howsver, the Parent's Board of Directors
considers that the aforementioned financial statemenis will be approved without any changes.

Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
The following mandatory standards and interpretations, already adopied in the European Union, became

effective in 2016, Where applicable, the Group has used them in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements:

(1) New standards, amendments and Interpretations mandatorlly applicable in the year

Approved for use in the European Union

Obligatory application
in annual reporting
periods beginning on
or after;

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38,
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisafion (issued
in May 2014}

Clarify the acceptable methods of depreciation and
amortisation of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets, which do not include methods that are
based on revenue.

1 January 2016

Amendments to IFRS 11, Accounting
for Acquisifions of Inlerests in Joint
Operations (issued in May 2014)

Provide guidance on the accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations in which the activity constitutes
a business.

1 January 2018

Improvements fo IFRSs, 2012-2014
cycele {issued in September 2014)

Minor amendments to a series of standards.

1 January 2016

Amendment to IAS 27 — Equity Method
in  Separate financial statements
(Issued August 2014).

The amendments reinstate the equity methed for an
investor's separate financial statements. This will have no
impact on the Spanish regulatory framework, as the legal
separate statements are prepared in accordance with the
General Accounting Plan.

1 January 2016




Approved for use In the European Union

Obligatory application
in annual reporting
periods beginning on
or after:

Ameandments to IAS 16 and 1AS 41:
Bearer Plants (Issued June 2014)

This amendment has a significant impact on the industry.
Bearer plants will be carried at cost, instead of at fair value.

1 January 2016

Amendmenis of IFRS 10 IFRS 12 and
IAS 28 - Investment companiss
(December 2014)

Clarifications related to investment companies and its
exception to consclidate its financial statements

1 January 2016

Amendment to 1AS 1. breakdowns
initiative (December 2014}

Clarifications  related to disclosures  (materiality;
aggregations, notes classifications).

1 January 2018

IFRS 14, Reguiatory Deferral Accounts

Interim standard until the |ASB issues a definilive standard

on regulated assets.

1 January 2016

(2) New standards, amendments and interpretations of mandatory application for annual periods after the
calendar year starting on 1 January 20186:

\

At the date of authorization of these annual consolidated financial statements, the following standards and
interpretations had heen published by the IASB but had not become effective, either because their effective
date was subsequent to the date of the consolidated financial statements or because they had yet to be adopted

by the European Union:

Approved for use in the European Union

after:

Mandatory application for
annual periods beginning on or

IFRS 15, Revenue from Coniracls
with Customers (issued in May
2014)

New revenue recognition standard (supersedes | Annual

IAS 11, IAS 18, IFRIC 13, IFRIC 15, IFRIC 18 beginning on or after 1 January

and SIC-31). 2018

reporting periods

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (last
phase issued in July 2014)

Replaces the requirements in JAS 38 relating to | 1 January 2018

the classification, measurement, recognition and
derecegnition of financial assets and financial
liabilities, hedge accounting and impairment.




Not Approved for use in the European Union

Mandatory application for
annual periods beginning on or
after:

IFRS 16 Leasss (published January
2016)

Eliminates the classification of leases as either

operating leasss or finance leases for a lessee.
Instead all leases are treated in a similar way to
finance leases.

1 January 2019

Amendments of IFRS 10 and IAS
28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The clarification is extremely significant relating
to gains or losses on these transactions, as until
now there has been a discrepancy between
these standards. When a business is involved,
there is full profit and loss recognition; when
assels are involved, there is partial profit and
loss recognition.

Date of adoption not defined

Amendments to 1AS 12,
Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses (issued in
January 2016)

Clarification in relation to the recognition of
deductible temporary differences related to debt
instruments.

1 January 2017

Amendments to {AS 7, Disclosure
Initiative (issued in January 2016}

Various clarifications in relation to disclosures
{finrancial fransactions, liquidity, etc.).

1 January 2017

Amendments to IFRS 2,
Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transaclions {issued in June 2016}

Various amendments to the standard on share-
based payment transactions in relation to
vesting conditions on cash-setled share-based
payment transactions, amendments to the terms
and conditions of plans, net setliements, etc.

1 January 2018

Clarifications to IFRS 15, Revenue
from Coniracts with Customers
(issued in April 20186)

Clarifications to the standard based on the
discussions of the TRG (Transition Resource
Group for Revenue Recognition).

1 January 2018

Amendments to IFRS 4, Applying
IFRS 9 Financial instruments with
IFRS 4, Insurance Contracts
(issued in September 2016).

Temporary accounting treatment as a result of
the different dates of entry into force of IFRS @
and the new standard on insurance contracts.

1 January 2018

Improvements to IFRSs, 2014-2016
eycle (issued in December 2016)

Minor amendments in relation to IFRS 1, 1AS 28
and IFRS 12,

1 January 2018

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance
Consideration (lssued in December
2018)

Clarification on the exchange rate to be used in
foreign currency transaclions that include the
receipt or payment of advance consideration in
a foreign currency.

1 January 2018

Amendments to 1AS 40, Transfers
of investment Propery {issued in
December 2016)

Guide to investment property transactions when
there is a change in use.

1 January 2018
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The Group is currently assessing the impact on the financial statements of applying these standards in the
fulure once they become effective. The Group’s assessment is that the impact of the application of these
standards will not be significant. The Group has performed a preliminary assessment in relation to the standards
that come into force in 2017 and subsequent years, particularly IFRS 15 and IFRS 9, of the impact that the
future application of these standards might have on the consolidated financial statements once they become
effective, after which it was concluded that the impacts of the application of these standards will not be material.
It was also considered that application of IFRS 16 would not have a material effect (see Note 4-).

Changes in accounting policies

In the exercise ended 31 December 20186, there were no significant changes in accounting policies with respect
to those applied in the exercise ended 31 December 2015,

Functional currency

These financial statements are presented in euros as this is the currency of the primary economic area in which
the Group operates. Currently, the Group does not have foreign operations

Responsibility for the information and estimates made

The information contained in these financial statements is the responsibility of the directors of the Group's
Parent.

In the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the 12 months period ended 31 December 2016 estimates
were occasionally made by the senior executives of the Group and of the consolidated companies, and later
ratified by the directors, in order to quantify certain assets, liabilities, income, expenses and commitments
reported herein. These estimates relate basically to the following:

1. The fair value of the Group's Real Estate assets (see Notes 9 and 12). The Group has ohtained valuations
from independent experts in 20186 for all of its Real Estate assets, describing the valuation mathod used in

Note 4.f.

2. The useful life of intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and investment property {(see Notes 7, 8
and 9).

3. The amount of certain provisions {see Note 16).
4. The recoverability of deferred tax assets (see Note 20},

Although these estimates were made on the basis of the best information available at 31 December 2018, future
events may require them to be modified prospectively (upwards or downwards), in accordance with IAS 8. The
effects of any change would be recognized in the corresponding consolidated income statement,

Consolidation principles

Subsidiaries are considered to be those companies over which the Parent directly or indirectly exercises control
through subsidiaries. The Parent has control over a subsidiary when it is exposed or has rights to variable
returns from its involvement with the subsidiary, and when it has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Parent has power when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the ability to direct the relevant activities of
the subsidiary, The Parent is exposed or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the subsidiary
when its returns from its involvement have the potential to vary as a result of the subsidiary’s performance,
Currently, all of the subsidiaries have been fully consolidated.
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Non-controlling interests are measured at the proportionate fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
recognised. The share of non-controlling interests Is as follows:

1. Interest in investees' squily is presented “Non-controfling interests” under equity in the consolidated balance
shest.

2. Share of profit or loss for the year is presented in "Non-controlling interests” in the consolidated income
statement.

Nevertheless, there are not Non-controlling interests as of 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015,

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All material balances and transactions between the fully consolidated companies and the results included In
inventorias arising from purchases from other Group companies have been eliminated on consolidation.

No timing adjustments have been necessary since the balance sheet date of all the Group companies is the
same.

First-time consolidation differences

On acquisition, the assets, liabilittes and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary are measured at their fair values
at the date of acquisition. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recognised as goodwill. Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired (i.e. a discount on acquisition) is faken to profit and loss for the period. First
consolidated financial statements did not imply recognizing any goodwill or gain.

Changes In the scope of consolidation

There were no changes in the scope of consolidation of the Neinor Homes Group {comprising Neinor Homes,
S.L.U. and its subsidiaries} in the year ended 31 December 2016,

On 30 July 2015, all the shares held by its sole shareholder Neinor Holdings, S.L.U. in Global Endurance,
S.L.U. were purchased by Neinor Homes Group for a price of EUR 4 thousand. This transaction has been
considered as a business combination. The accounting policy in this respect was to calculate the acquisition-
date fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, provided that fair value can be reliably
measured. Any positive difference between the costs of the business combination and the value of the
identifiable assets acquired less the liabilities assumed is recognised as goodwill. Negative differences are
recognised as income in the statement of profit or loss.
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The assels and Nabillities of Global Endurance, S.L.U. acquired by the Group in the aforementioned purchase
transaction are as follows:

Thousands of
Quros
Global
Endurance,
S.L.U.
Assets:
Inventories (Note 12) 9,076
Other credits with tax payables 1.892
Other current assets 22
Total assets 10.990
Liabilities:
Long-term debt with related parties and associated companies (*) 10.984
Other current liabilities 2
Total Liabilities 10.986
Net Assets 4

(*} EUR 2,300 thousands are related lo Neinor Hemes Group

Subsequent to measuring the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, the directors of the Parent considered
that the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities of the acquired company does not differ materially from

their fair value.
In addition, on 31 December 2015, Neinor Holdings, S.L.U. forgave the debt from Global Endurance, S.L.U.,

amounting to EUR 8,684 thousand, registering to the effacts of this financial annual statements, through its
recognition as reserves in the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the six-month reporting period

ended 31 December 2015.
Comparative information

The information refating to the 2016 consolidated financial statements is presented for comparisen purposes
with that retating to the 6 months exercise ended 31 December 2015,

Aspect 1o be taken into account is the circumstance that the 2016 period is referred-to a 12 months peried and
the comparison period is referred to a 6 months period.

In addition, any comparison must take info account the changes in the Group financial structure as per indicated
in Notes 15 and 17.

Correction of errors

In preparing fhe accompanying consolidated financial statements no errors were detected that would have
made it necessary to restate the amounts included in the consolidated financial statements for year ended 31

December 2015.
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3. Distribution/Application of profitsflosses atfributable to the Parent
The distributionfapplication of profitsflosses proposed by the Parent's directors for approval by its shareholders at
the Annual General Meeting, is as follows:
Thousands of euros
31.12.16 | 31.12.15
Basis of distribution:
Profit / (loss) for the year 12,429 8.230
Application:
-To legal reserve 1.243 823
-To voluntary reserves 11.186 6.094
- To prior years’ losses - 713
12,429 8.230
4, Measurement bases

The accounting principles and policies and measurement bases applied in preparing the Neinor Homes Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the exercise ended 31 December 2016 and the exercise ended 31 December

2015 were as follows:

a)

b)

intangible assets

Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assets, without physical substance, which arise as a result of a
legal transaction or which are developed by the consolidated companies. Only assels whose cost can be
estimated reasonably objectively and fraom which the consolidated companies consider it probabie that future

economic benefits will be generated are recognised.

Intangible assets are recognised initially at acquisition or production cost and are subsequently measured at
cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment assets are recognised initialiy at acquisition/contribution or preduction cost and
are subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment

losses,

The costs of expansion, modernisation or improvements leading to increased productivity, capacity or efficiency
or to a lengthening of the useful lives of the assets are capitalised as an increase in the cost of corresponding

assets.

Maintenance and repair costs that do not jead to a lengthening of the useful lives of the assets are charged to
the income statement for the peried in which they are incurred.

Interest and other financial charges incurred during the period of construction of property, plant and equipment
are racognised as an increase in the cost of the construction in progress (see section n} of this Note}.

11
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Depreciation is calculated by applying the straight-line method to the acquisition cost of assets less their
residual value, The land on which Group buildings and other structures stand is deemed to have an indefinite

useful life and, therefore, is not depreciated.

The periods of which the property, plant and equipment depreciation charges are recognised in the consolidated
income statement on the basis of the average years of estimated useful life of the various assets, are as follows:

Annual rate

Straight-line depreciation method:

Other installations 15%
Furniture 15%
Data processing equipment 30%
Other items of property, plant and equipment 15%

Assets under construction for production or administrative purposes, or for purposes not yet determined, are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment losses. Cost includes professional fees. Depreciation of these

assets commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Assets cther than investment property held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful
lives on the same basis as owned assets or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease,

Costs incurred in rented assets (the Group acting as an operating lessee) are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

At the end of each reperting period, consolidated companies assess whether therg are any internal or external
indications that the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment exceeds its recoverable
amount, in which cass the carrying amount of the asset is written down to the recoverable amount and the
future depreciation charges are adjusted in proportion to the revised carrying amount and the new remaining
useful life, should it need to be remeasurad.

Similarly, if there is an indication of a recovery in the value of an impaired asset, the consolidated companies
recognise the reversal of the impairment loss previously recorded and adjust the future depreciation charges

accordingly. In no circumstances may the reversal of an impairment loss on an assst raise its carrying amount
above that which it would have if no impairment losses had been recognised in prior years.

investment property

“Investrnent Praperty” in the consolidated balance sheet reflects the values of the land, buildings and other
structures held either to earn rentals or for capital appreciation.

Thase assets are recognised initially at acquisition price or production cost and are subsequently decreased by
the corresponding accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

12
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A change in the intended use of a property does not provide sufficient evidence for its transfer to, or from,
investment property. There is a transfer between inventories and investment property when there is a change
in the use of a property evidenced by the commencement of a lease agreement in relation to it, in which case
it would be transferred from inventories to investment property, or when a real estate development in relation
to the property in question commences with a view to subsequent sale, in which case it would be transferred
from investment property to inventories. When the Group decides to dispose of an investment property without
development, it continues to treat the property as an investment property until it is disposed of. On the other
hand, if the Group decides to redevelop a properly for subsequent iease, the property remains an investment

property during the redevelopment.

Investment property upkeep and maintenance expenses are recognised in the income statement for the year
in which they are incurred, However, the costs of improvements leading to increased capacity or efficiency or
to a lengthening of the useful lives of the assets are capitalised.

The costs of expansion, modsmisation or improvements leading to increased productivity, capacity or efficiency
or to a lengthening of the useful lives of the assets are capitalised. Maintenance and repair expenses are
recognised with a charge to the consolidated income statement for the year in which they are incurred.

The Group depreciates these assets by the straight-line method at annual rates based on the years of estimated
useful life of the assets, the detall being as follows:

Years of
usefil life

Buildings 30

At the end of sach reporting period or whenever there are indications of impairment, the Company calculates
the recoverable amount of these assets as described in Note 4.d. No significant differences are noted betwsen

the market valus of these assets and their net book value.
impalrment of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Neinor Homes Group reviews the carrying amounts of its items of
property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets are impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the Impahment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate
cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Whera an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for

the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years.
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Impairment has been calculated in accordance with the criteria described in Note 4.f. Also, in the case of leased
real estate assets, the Group uses a mixed criterion. Since they are linked to commercial operations, the most
appropriate methodology s considered to be the discounted cash flows model considering the inflows and
outflows arising from the operation of the asset determined by its lease status. An exit value is determined when
the lease expires or considering the periods, in any case, of mandatory application, calculated by recognising
the perpetual return of the last year analysed or a market-based return, once the characteristics and contractual
terms and conditions of the assets have been analysed, considering the constant return. The yield used as a
discount rate will ba determined as the yield demandad by the market when the valuation is made based on

the spedific features of the assets.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the leases transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Oparating ieases

In operating leases, the ownership of the leased asset and substantially all the risks and rewards relating to the
leased asset remain with the lessor.

When consolidated entities act as lessors, they present the fair value of the leased asset under "Investment
property”. Lease income is recognised in the income staternents on a straight-tine basis.

When consolidated entities act as the lessee, lease costs, including any incentives granted by the lessor, are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis.

Any benefits from incentives received or receivable for arranging an operating lease are also recognised oh a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

At the end of 2016 the Group had contracted with lessors for the following minimum lease payments, based on
the leases currently in force, without taking into account the charging of common expenses, future increases In
the CPI or future contractual lease payment revisions {in thousands of euros):

Nominal
value
Minimum operating lease payments 2016
Within one year 515
Between one and five years 518
After five years -
Total 1.033
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B Inventories

*Inventories® in the consolidated balance shest include assets that the consofidated companies:

1. Hold for sale in the ordinary course of business.
2. Hold under production, construction or development for sale in the ordinary course of business.
3. Expect! to be consumed in the production process or in the rendering of services.

The Group considers that its inventories do not mest the requirements of IAS 40 far consideration as investment
property. Consequently, land and other property held for sale or for inclusion in a property development are

treated as inventories.

Land and sites are measured at the lower of acquisition cost, plus site development costs, if any, purchase
transaction costs (transfer tax, registration expenses, etc.) and finance costs incurred over the peried the urban
development work is being carried out (see section n} of this Note), or estimated market value.

The costs incurred in property devefopments, or in portions thereof, the construction of which had not been
cormpleted at year-end, are classified as construction in progress. These costs include costs relating to the site,
urban development and construction costs, capitalised finance costs incurred in the construction period, and
other allccable direct and indirect costs. Marketing expenses are charged to the consolidated income statement
in the year in which they are incurred. Finance costs, which amounted to EUR 552 thousand in 2018, were
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as a reduction of the financial profit and related to
expenses associated with developments in Progress (see Note 4-n).

The Group companies transfer the accumulated costs of completed developments, or a portion thereof, from
“Construction work in progress” to “Completed properties™,

The inventories transferred to the Neinor Homes Group by virtue of the contributions made in the context of the
transaction described in Nate 1 are recognised initially at the amount assigned to them in the related transfer
agresments. This amount coincides with the carrying amount at which these inventories had been recognised
in the accounting records of the contributing companies, considering their acquisition cost or their net
recoverable value, the lower,

"Short-Cycle Developments in Progress” are considered to be the accumulated costs of those developments
for which the projected construction completion period does not exceed tweive months.

The cost of construction in progress and completed work is reduced to its fair value and, where appropriate,
the related allowance for decline in value is recognised. However, if the fair value is greater than the net value
of the cost, the value of the cost/contribution is maintained.

The fair value of the Group’s inventories is calculated on the basis of appraisals carried out by independent
experls not related to the Group (Savills Cansultores Inmobiliarios, S.A.) or internal estimates. These appraisals
or estimates use mainly the dynamic residual method fo calculate the fair value and are carried out in
accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Standards issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
(RICS) in the United Kingdom and the International Valuation Standards (IVS) issued by the International

Valuation Standards Committee {IVSC).
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As indicated previously, the dynamic residual method was used to calculate fair value. This method consists of
estimating the value of the final product based on the comparison or discounted cash flow method, and
sublracting from this value the development costs, including the residential development and construction costs,
fees, levies, etc., and the profit of the developer for estimating the residual value. Income and cosls are
distributed over time in line with the periods of development and sales estimated by the expert. The discount
rate used Is that which represants the average annual return an the project, without taking into account external
financing, which would be obtained by an average developer in a development of the characteristics of that
analyzed. This discount rate is calculated by adding the risk premium determined by evaluating the risk of the
development {taking into account the type of property asset to be constructed, its location, liquidity, the
construction period and the investment volume required) to the risk-free interest rate.

Given the uncertainties inherent to any information based on future expectations, there could be deviations
between the projected results consfdered when performing the aforementioned estimates and the actual ones,
what may require them to be modified prospectively (upwards or downwards), as described in Note 2.6

In the period ended 31 December 2015, the Group performed an in-depth study of the actual situation of its
assels and undertook an individualised business plan for each of them based on the specific analysis of each
case and adjusling the marketing schedules and prices to their specific paculiarities based on conservative
assumptions involving additional write-downs within the, sectorial accepted, admissitle fuctuation ranges
possible for the appraisals undertaken by third parties, which had been taken as a reference for the period
ended 30 June 2015. At 31 December 2018, all its assets had been appraised by an indepandent exper, having
taken the aforementioned value as a reference when assessing the existence of any impairment losses to be
recognised for accounting purposes, adjusted, in certain cases, by tolerances of five percent; the effect thereof

was not significant taken as a whole.

In this respect the appraisal methodology used by the valuer at 31 December 2016 was different taking into
consideration the different types of real estate assets held by the Company (see Note 6), and the most
significant aspects considered in the appraisals were as follows:

Development assefs-

The appraisals were conducted on a case-by-case basis for each asset, taking into consideration the building
qualities envisaged for each one, which in turn determine the assoclated contracting costs and range of sale
prices. Also, for each individual asset, the average periods for achieving the various urban planning,
management and discipline milestones, as well as the average construction periods for each development
depending on the building type and density were taken into account.

Lastly, the discount rate associated with each project was calculated, and a sensitivity analysis performed on
the rate depending on the zoning status of the developments at that time. The discount rates vary according to
the development stage reached by the asset (plot without development, under construction, with pre-sales or
finished), with rates ranging between 8% (for work in progress with pre-sales) and 14% (for certain usban plots).

Once a preliminary estimate has been made of the value of the assets, a review of the valuation models is
performed, verifying the reasonableness of the ratios, such as the percentage of the finished product
represented by the plot, the profit on the construction cost or the profit obtained according to sales.

Other parameters are also set in each of the appraisals, the main cnes being as follows:

- Advance sales before the start of the construction of the developments were not taken into consideration.
Itwas estimated that 70% - 75% of the sales (pre-sales off plan, in a private sale and purchase agreement)
will be carried out during the construction of the developments and the remaining sales within nine months

following completion thereof.
- Increases in sale prices over the existing market prices were not taken into consideration.
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- Itis estimated that 33/36 months could elapse between the time necassary for the drafting of the project
and the obtainment of the construction permit, construction and delivery of the project, and the end of the

marketing and sale of the units.

Legacy assels

This type of asset was appraised basically using the comparison method, except in the case of plots or
developments exceeding approximately 30 units, which were valued in accordance with the methodology

described above for "development asseis”.
In addition, the assumptions used to value these asssts were as follows:
- They are insured and all the risks relating to possible replacements are covered, and they are in a sufficlent

physical and functioning state for current use.
- They are not subject to court proceedings, disputes, evictions of tenants without or without agreements or

outstanding claims of any kind.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables do not earn interest and are stated at their nominal valus, fess any allowances for estimated
unrecoverable amounts,

Customer advances
The amount of the advances received from customers prior to recognition of the sales of the properties,

according to the criteria indicated in note 4.m, is recognised at year-end under “Trade and other payables -
Customer advances” on the liability side of he consolidated balance shest,

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the Group's consolidated balance shest when the Group
becomes party to the contractual terms of the instrument.

During the exercise ended 31 December 2016 and the 6 months exercise ended 31 December 2015 the
measurement bases applied by the Group to its financial instruments were as follows:

Financial assels

Financial assets are initially recognised at cost, including attributable transaction costs.

The financial assets held by Group companies are classified as:

1. Held-to-maturity investments: financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity. The
Group has the positive intention and ability to hold them from the date of purchase to the date of maturity.

This category does not include loans and accounts receivable originated by the Group.

2. Loans and receivables originated by the Group: financial assets originated by Group companies in
exchange for supplying cash, goods or services directly to a debtor. These are measured at amortised cost.

Held-to-maturity financial assets, and loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost.
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Financial assets are derecognised from the consolidated balance sheet by the different Group companies when
the contractual rights on the cash flows of the financial asset expire or when substantially all the risks and
benefits inherent to ownership of the financial asset are transferred.

At each balance-sheet date, the Group assesses whether there is any objective evidence of impairment of
financial assets. The Group assesses whether there is any objective evidence of impairment for toans and

accounts receivable.

Financial labilities and equity

Financiat liabilities and equity instruments are classified in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangement. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group.

The main financial liabllities held by Group companies are held-to-maturity financial liabilities, measured at
amortised cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised in equity at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Bank loans

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recognised at the amount received, net of direct issue costs.
Finance costs, including premiums payable on setflement or reimbursement and direct issue costs, are
recognised in the consolidated income statsment on an accrual basis using the effective interest method and
are added fo the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period in which

they arise.
Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value.

In relation to non-recourse confirming, the International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS") do not explicitly
state the accounting treatment applicabie to the aforementioned transactions.

According to the European Securities and Markets Authority (ESMA) these types of transactions (also called
“reverse factoring”) should be analyzed depending on the economic substance of the agreementis, so that
issuers can conclude whether the trade debt should be classified as financial debt within the Statements of
financial position, or payments made should be classified as financial or operational within the Cash flow

statements.

Consequently, provided that there are no material changes to the conditions of the trade debt (for example, o
the due date, the amount or the interest rates, if applicable), the fact that due to the use of confirming, the new
legal creditor is a financial institution instead of the supplier, does not change the economic character of the
debt that arose from the operational activities of the Group company, regardless of whather it originated from

an external or a group supplier.

This is the accounting policy chosen by the Group. However it does not have any impact on the consolidated
financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2016 (Note 17).

18




P

k)

0

Shares of the Parent

All the shares of the Parent held by consolidated companies are deducted from equity. At 31 December 2016
and 31 December 2015, neither the Parent nor any of the subsidiaries or associates held treasury shares.

Provisifons

The Group's consolidated financial statements include all the material provisions with respect to which it is
considered that it is more likely than not that the obligation will have to be settled. Contingent liabilities are not
recognised in the consolidated annual financial statements, but are disclosed, as required by IAS 37.

Provisions, which are quantified on the basis of the best information available on the consequences of the event
giving rise to them and are reviewed and adjusted at the end of each year, are used to meet the specific
obligations for which they were originally recognised. Provisions are fully or partially reversed when such
obligations cease to exist or are reduced.

At the end of the exercise ended 31 December 2018 and the 6 months exercise ended 31 December 2015
certain litigation and claims were in process against the consolidated companies arising from the ordinary
course of their operations. The Group's legal advisers and directors consider that the provisions recorded are
sufficient and that the outcome of these proceedings and claims will not have any additional material effect on
the financial statements for the years in which they are settled (see Nots 21).

Provisions for warranties

Provisions for warranty costs, particularly after-sales expenses, other costs and the ten-year guarantee required
under Spanish regulations governing real estate companies, are recognised at the date of sale of the relevant
produgts, in line with the best eslimate of the expenditure required to settle the Group's potential liability,

according to market experience.

income tax

The Parent files consolidated income tax returns under Income Tax Provincial Regulation 11/2013, of 8
December, and forms part of tax group no. 0211BSC headed by Neinor Holdings, S.L.U. (see Note 20). The
Group companies Nainor Peninsula, S.L.U. and Neinor Sur S.L.U. file their tax returns separately, since they
do not belong to the aforementioned consolidated tax group.

The consolidated income tax expense is recognised in the consolidated income statement, unless it arises as
a consequence of a transaction the result of which is recorded directly in equity, in which case the income tax

expense is also recognised in equity,

The consolidated income tax expense for the year is calculated on the basis of taxable profit for the year. The
taxable profit differs from the net profit reported in the income statement because it excludes revenue and
expense items which are taxable or deductible in different years and also excludes items that will never be
taxable or deductible. The Group's current tax liability Is calculated on the basis of tax rates that have been
approved or substantially approved at the date of the consolidated balance sheet.
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The Group companies file consofidated income tax returns and in this process they apply the following rules:
tempaorary differences arising In the calculation of the consolidated tax base arising from the transactions
between companies composing the tax group, provided that such results have not bean raalised vis-a-vis third
parties, are recognised by the company that had recognised the result; permanent differences (e.g. due to the
elimination of dividends paid among companies in the tax group) or temporary differences arising in the
calculation of the consolidated tax base are recognised as a permanent or temporary difference by the company
that had recognised the result, and any tax losses and tax credits and rebates offset or used by the companies
composing the tax group are recognised as an account receivable or payable between the reporting company

and the companies that offset and/or use them.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are the amounts expected to be recoverable or payable calculated on
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabiliies in the financial statements and the tax bases
used in caleulating the taxable profit. They are recognised using the consolidated balance sheet liability method
and are quantified by applying to the related temporary difference or tax asset the tax rates at which it is
expected that the asset will be realised or the liability settled.

A deferred tax asset or liability is recognised for temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries
and associates and from interests in joint ventures, except when the Group is in a position to control the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

However;

1. Deferred tax assels are only recognised if it is considered probable that the consolidated companies will
have sufficient future taxable profits against which the deferred tax asset can be utilized, considering, in any
case, market expectalions and in a restricted way, so the Deferred tax assets are recognised only once
there is a consolidated improvement of the Real Estate sector.

2. No deferred tax liabilities are recognised for goodwill arising on an acquisition.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to verify that they remain in
force, and the appropriate adjustments are made on the basis of the results of the review, considering their

temporary and quantfiative limits, if there were any, for its application.

m) Revenue and expense
Revenue and expenses are recognised on an accrual basis.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents balances
receivable for goods delivered and services rendered in the ordinary course of business, less discounts, VAT

and other sales taxes.

Rental revenue is recognised on an accrual basis, with incentive benefits, and the initial lease costs are
allocated to income on a straight-line basis.

The Group companies recognise property development sales and the related cost when the properties are
handed over and title thereto has been transferred. For these purposes, the sale of a residential finished product
is understood {o have occurred when the keys are handed over, which coincides with the execution of the public

deed and final collection of the price.

The Group recognises land sales when the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred, which is
generally the date the deed of sale is executed, as long as a substantial part has been disbursed (nearly 50%)
or the unrealized gain has been granted against the compensation contractually settled. Otherwise, the sell will
not be considered as recognized for accounting purposes. If the sale made is subject to fulfilment of a genuine
condition precedent, the sale is not recognised until such time as it is fulfilled.
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The Group can make purchases of land subject to conditions subsequent and precedent. If there are conditions
precedent, the contract comes into force when the condition is fulfilled and, in turn, the contract becomes
effective. The amounts paid in the context of contracts subject to conditions precedent are recognised as
"Advances to Suppliers" and as such are subject to the measurement standard applicable to trade receivables.
If there are conditions subsequent, the fulfiiment of the condition marks the extinction of the effects of the
contract and, therefore, the Group assesses the probability associated with the condition and the party on which
the fulfilment of the condition depends, for the pusposes of recognising the rights and obligations associated

with the contract over time.

The cost allocated to the units up for sale of a property development is determined by allocaling to each unit
being sold the portion of the total costs of the development that results from applying to them the same
proportion that their selling price represents in relation to the estimated value of the development taken as a

whole.

The amounts received from customers on account of future sales of land and/or buildings, both in cash and
commercial bills, to the extent that the recognition of the sale does not occur in the terms described above, are
recognised, as the case may be, as advances received under "Customer Advances" under current liabilities in

the consolidated balance sheet.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised by reference to the percentage or stage of completion of
the transaction at the end of the reporting period, provided the outcome of the fransaction can be estimated
reliably. Revenue from the Group's services are those associated with the contract for the administration and
management of real estate assets entered into with Kutxabank and described in Note 1 under exclusivity
conditions, which also includes urban planning and marketing services. As consideration for these services, the
various companies in the real estate area of Kutxabank will pay a fixed remuneration based on the type and
velume of the assets (a reference value baing established between the parties) for the management and
administration thereof, while a variable success remuneration will be received for their marketing as well as
other variable revenue accrued annually in the event of achieving the sales objectives established betwsan the
parties, which vary according to whether they are less than 70% thereof, equal to 70% or above 70%; to this is
added the variable remuneration linked to the request for execution of certain specific actions relating to assets
surch as work requested in relation to the analysis of the incorporation of new assets under management or
services associated with third-parly assels at the request of Kutxabank. If over two successive years the degree
of achievement of the objectives were below 30%, the right to exclusivily in relation to marketing would be lost.
The objective has been achieved at the end of the reporting period 2016.

Interest revenue is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount.

Dividend revenue from investments is recognised when shareholders’ rights to receive payment have baen
established. :

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of property developments or
property investments are added to the costs of these assets, only during periods when an effective development
occurs (idle periods are excluded) and until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on gualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

In the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group capitalised borrowing costs amounting to EUR 552 thousand

to "Inventories” (see Note 12).During the 6 months exercise ended 31 December 2015 the Group had not
capitalised any financial interest in inventories.
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All other borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated income statement in the period in which they are

incurred.

o} Profif from operations

The profit from operations is presented befare the share of results of associates (companies accounted for
using the equity method) and before investment income and finance costs,

p) Termination henefits

Under current labour legislation, the Group companies are required to pay termination benefits to employees
whose contracts are ferminated under certain conditions. Neither as of 31 December 2016 nor 31 December

2015 is a provision for termination benefits recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

q) Consolidated cash flow statements

The consolidated cash flow statements have been prepared using the indirect method and the terms used are

defined as follows:

1. Cash flows: inflows and outflows of cash and cash equivalents, which are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2. Operating activities: the principal revenue-producing activities of the entities composing the consclidated
Group and other activities that are not investing or financing activities.

3. Investing activities: the acquisition and disposal of long-term assets and other investments not included in

cash and cash equivalents, if they have a direct impact on current cash flows.

4. Financing activities: activities that resuit in changes in the size and composition of the equity and liabilities
that are not operating activities, if they have a direct impact on current cash flows.

r} Current assets and liabilities

The Group has opted to present current assets and liabilities in accordance with its ordinary course of business.

The current assets and liabilities with estimated maturities of over twelve months are as follows:

Thousands of euros

31.12.16 31.12,15
Inventories (long term) 718.513 730.400
Total eurrent assets 718.513 730,400
Bank borrowings 277.068 10.143
Other cnrrent liabilities 15.944 -
Total current liabilities 293,012 10,143

s} Share-based paymenis

At 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any oplion plans on Neinor Homes,

S.L.U. shares.
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u)

Related party transactions

The Group performs all its transactions with related partiss on an arm'’s length basis. Also, the transfer prices
are adequately supported and, therefore, the Parent’s directors consider that there are no material risks in this
connection that might give rise to significant liabilities in the future {see Note 23),

The Group's policy is to obtain a transfer pricing report prepared by an externat adviser oneg year in airears, as
established in current tax legislation.

Remuneration of senfor executives

The remunsration of senior executives of the Parent and persons who discharged similar duties (see Note 24)
is recognised on an accrual basis, and at year-end the related provision is recognised for any amounts not

settled.

5. Earnings! {loss) per share

a)

b)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

Basic earnings/ (loss) per share are calculated by dividing net profit/ {loss) for the year atiributable to the Group
(i.e., after tax and non-controlling interests) by the weighted average number of shares cutstanding during that

year,

Accordingly:
Thousands of euros
31.12.16 | 31.12.15
Earnings / (loss) for the year (thousands of euros) 1.057] (70.866)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding
(thousands of shares) (*) (Note 15) 853.373] 939.878
Basic earnings/ (loss) per share (curos) 0,001 | (0,075)

(*) Note: average number of shares adjusied for lreasury shares.

Diluted earnings/ {loss) per share

Diluted earnings/loss per share is calculated in the same way as basic earnings/loss per share, but the weighted
average number of shares outstanding is adjusted to take into account the potential dilutive effect of share
options, warrants and convertible bonds outstanding at year end.

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the diluted earnings/loss per share of the Neinor Homes Group coincided with
the basic earningsfloss per share.
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6.

Segment reporting

a)

o)

Basis of segmentation
Segment reporting is structured based on the Group's various lines of business.

The lines of business described below were established on the basis of the Neinor Homes Group's
organisational structure at 2016 year-end, taking into account, on the one hand, the nature of the goods and
services offered and, on the other, the customer segments at which they are targeted.

The Neinor Homes Group engages mainly in developing and selling property developments {see Note 1}, and
the Group distinguishes the results generated from the assets earmarked for property development (included
under "Devslopment") from those assets considered as non-strategic {included under "Legacy"). In addition, in
accordance with the asset management and administration agreement described in Note 1, the Group provides
services of this naturs to various Kutxabank Group companies, and the information relating to this segment is
included under "Asset Management - Servicing" In Note 6. Rental property activity is recognised as a residual
activity for the Group and, therefore, was not considered as an independent line of business for segmentation
purposes. Also, it is considered that the assets are not strategic for the Group and so the related assets,

liabilities and results are classified under "Legacy”.

Income and expenses that cannot be specifically attributed to any operating line or that are the result of
decisions affecting the Group as a whole -and, among them, expenses incurred in projects or activities affecting
several lines of business- are attributed to a “Corporate Unit/Other” to which the reconciling items arising from
the reconciliation of the result of integrating the financial statements of the various lines of business (prepared
using a management approach) to the Group’s consolidated financial statements are also allocated.

Group's activities at 31 December 2016 and 2015 have been carried out entirely in Spain.

Basis and methodology for segment reporting

The segment information below is based on monthly reports prepared by Group management and is generated
through the same computer application as that used to obtain all the Group’s accounting information. This
information is reviewed by the Finance Management Committee (on which both management and the sole
shareholder are represented) to make decisions on the allocation of resources and to evaluate performance.

Segment revenue is revenue that is directly attributable to the segment. The revenue of each segment does
not include intsrest income, dividends or gains on the sale of property assets.

The expenses of each segment are detemnined on the basis of the expenses arising from the segment's
operating activities that are directily attributable to it (as is the case of "Cost of Sales", "Outside Services" and
"Change in Operating Provisions, Allowances and Write-Downs"), plus the relevant proportion of the expenses
that may be allocated to the segment using reasonable allocation bases (lhe lafter methed is applied to staff

costs),

The segment result is presented before any adjustments that might relate to non-controlling interests.

Segment assets and liabilities are those directly related to each segment's operations, plus those that can be
directly attributed therato using the aforementioned allocation hases. However, "Accounts Receivable from
Public Authorities" and "Cash and Cash Equivalents”, regardless of their origin, are allocated to the ”Corporate
Unit/Other" line. Liabilities do not include income tax payable.
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Segment information

Thousands of Euros

Assels management ~
Legacy Davelopment Servicing Otiters / Corporate Tatal
31.12.16 31.12.15 | 311206 | 31.12.15 | 31.12.16 | 31.12.15 | 3L12.16 | 31.12.15 | 31.12.16 | 3L12.15
Revenue:
Third paity sales 164.293 87,246 36,611 31.974 27.661( 14452 - 10161 228.565]| 134.688
Total Revenue: 164,293 87.246 36,6111 31974 27,661 | 14.452 - 1,016 228.565] 134.688
Thousands of Euros
Assets management
Legacy Development — Servicing Others / Corporate Total
310216 | 318215 | 31.12.16 | 31.12.15 | 31.12.16 | 31.12.15 [ 31.12.16 1 31,1215 | 31.12.16 | 31.12.15
Income:
Third party sales: 164.293 87.246 36,611 311974 27.661 14.452 - 1.016| 228.565 134.638
Cost of sales (178.322) | (83.317)| (27.038)| (21.554) - - - - (205.360) | (104.871)
Change in trade provisions -
Application of impairments for
sold stocks (' 44.077 9,987 - - - - - - - 44,077 9,987
Gross margin 30.048 13.916 9.573 10,420 |  27.661 14,452 - 1.016 67,282 39.804
Employee benefits expenses (2.740) (1247 (6.095) (1.958) | (2.836)| (1.603) - - (11.677) (4.808)
Extemal Services (23.218) | (15.827) (9.766) (7.159) | (72H4)| {(2.550) - - (40.198)] (25.536)
Change in trade provisions —
Others (**) (16.286) | {62.237) 6.804| (17.368) - - - - (9.482)| (79.605)
QOther operating gains / {losses) 3.704 50t - 46 - - - 234 3.704 781
EBITDA (8.498) | (64.894) 516 (16.019)] 17611 19,299 - 1,258 92,6291 (69.364)
Net interest expense and others - - (4.893) 617) - - - - (4.893) {617}
Depreciation and amortization {376) (244) - - - - (232) {26) (608) (270)
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (8.874) | (65.138) (4.377) | (16.636) 17,611 10,299 (232) 1.224 4,128 1 (70.251)
Change in trade provisions -
Others (**) 16.286 62.237 (6.804) 17.368 - - - - 9.482 79.605
Net interest expense and others - - 4.393 617 - - - - 4,893 617
Depreciation and amoriization 376 244 - - - - 232 26 608 270
ADJUSTED EBITDA (*) 7.788 (2.657) {6.288) L34%| 17611 10,299 - 1.250 19.111 10,241
(") A financial measure used by Group management which does not take into consideration the impairment losses on the Group's
Investment properties and inventories, mainly.
(**) See Change in trade provisions — Stocks in Note 22.f, To show the resulls generated on the sales of each segment more accuralely,
the impairment losses on real estale assels that were sold in both years were separated from the other impairment losses related 1o
assets still recognized on the Group's consolidated balance sheal and {he effect relating to the change in ofher provisions.
Thousands of Euros
Management Assets -
Legacy Development Servicing Others / Corporate Total
al.02.16 | 31.12.15 | 311206 | 31.12.15 | 31,1216 | 31.12,15 § 31.12.86 | 31.12.15 | 31.12.16 | 311215
Baiance sheet:
Non-Current assets 12.893 11.010 - - - - 2.643 1.613 15.536 12.623
Current assets 211.907| 355.930] 732.541 605.297 10.544 7.810 45,301 123.849| 1.000.293 | 1.092.886
Total Assets 224.800 | 366.940§ 732.541 605.297 10.544 7.810 47,944 | 125.462| 1.015.829 ] 1.105.509
Financial Debt (*) - - 303.691 62.992 - - - - 303.691 62.992
Other Noa-cuorrent liabilities 355 65 - - - - - - 355 65
Other current liabilities 9.295 4779 60.821 190.727 3.045 875 7.610 5.457 80.771 201.838
Total Liabilities 9.650 48441 364.512 253.719 3.045 875 7.610 5457 | 384.817| 264.895

{* Non- Current and Current Bank Borrowings
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7. Intangible assets

The changes in "Intangible assets” in the exercise ended 31 December 2016 and the 6 months exercise ended 31

December 2015, by type of asset, were as follows;

Exercise ended 31 December 2016

Thousands of euros

Tndustrial
Computer property
Software [(See Note 23)]  Total
Cost:
Balance at 31 December 2015 150 - 150
Additions 763 14 777
Disposals (38) - (38)
Balance at 31 December 2016 875 14 889
Accumulated amortisation:
Balance at 31 December 2015 (37} - 7
Charges (116) - (116)
Disposals 38 - 38
Balance at 31 December 2016 (135) - (135}
Net Balance at 31 Decentber 2016 740 14 754
6 months exercise ended 31 December 2015
Thousands of euros
Computer
Software Total

Cost:

Balance at 30 June 2015 118 118

Additions 32 32

Disposals - -

Transfers - -

Balance at 31 December 2015 150 150

Accumulated anrortisation:

Balance at 30 June 2015 (34) (54)

Charges 3) (3)

Disposals - -

Transfers - -

Balance at 31 December 2015 (57) (57)

Net Balance at 31 December 2015 93 923

The main additions in 2016 relate to the development of the management software used by the Group and the
acquisition of the Neinor brand from its sole shareholder (see Note 23).
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At 31 December 2016 and 2015, there were no intangible assets provided as collateral for any obligation.

At 31 December 2016 there are no intangible assets fully amortized,

Property, plant and equipment

The changes in this heading in the exercise ended 31 December 2016 and the 6 months exercise ended 31

December 2015, were as follows:

Exercise ended 31 December 2016

Thousands of euros

Technical Other {tems

items and of Property, Plant

machinery and equipment Total
Cost:
Balance at 31 December 2015 267 1.249 1.516
Additions 237 71 308
Disposals (5) (119) (124)
Balance at 31 December 2016 499 1.201 1.700
Accumutated amortisation:
Balance at 31 December 2015 (17 an 94
Charges 39 (77} (E16)
Dispaosals 5 38 63
Balance at 31 December 2016 {(51) (96) (147)
Net Balance at 31 December 2016 448 1,108 1,553

8 months exercise ended 31 December 2015
Thousands of euros

Technical Gther items

items and of Property, Plant

machinery and equipment Total
Cost:
Balance at 30 June 2015 184 922 1.106
Additions 83 327 410
Disposals - - -
Transfers - -
Balance at 31 December 2015 267 1.249 1.516
Accumulated amortisafion;
Balance at 30 June 2015 (7) 64) (71)
Charges (10} (13) (23)
Disposals - R
Transfers - - -
Bafance at 31 December 2015 (17) {77) o4
Net Balance at 31 December 2015 250 1172 1.422
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Main additions of the exercise ended 31 December 2018 and 2015 correspond to the works made and furniture
purchased in the new offices of the Group.

The disposals in 2016 gave rise to a loss of EUR 2 thousand, and this amount was recognised under "Impairment
and Gains or Losses on Digposals of Non-Current Assels" in the accompanying consolidated statement of profit or

loss.

The Neinor Homes Group takes out all the insurance policies it considers necessary to cover the risks which might
affect its property, plant and equipment.

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, there were no property, plant and equipment items fully amortised.

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, there were no propeitly, plant and equipment items provided as collateral for any
obligation.

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group did not have any significant commitments to purchase items of property
plant and equipment.

Investment properties

The changes in this heading in the exercise ended 31 December 2016 and the 6 months exercise ended 31
December, were as follows:

Exercise ended 31 December 2016

Thousands of euros
Provision
(see Note
Cost Amortisation 22.f) Net

Balance at 31 December 2015 17.576 (328) (6.238) 11014
Additions/Charges - (376) (1.059) (1.435)
Transfer from stocks (Note 12} 10.266 - (3.876) 6.390
Transfer to stocks (Note 12) (5.194) 113 2.009 (3.072)
Balance at 31 December 2016 22.648 (591) (2.164) 12.893
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6 months exercise ended 31 December 2015

Thousands of euros
Provision
(see Note
Cast Amortisation 22.5 Net

Balance at 30 June 2015 17.685 an (4.304) 13.334
Additions/Charges - (244) (1.977) (2.221)
Disposals and others {109) (37) 43 (103)
Balance at 31 December 2015 17.576 (328) {6,238) 11,010

The gain on sales of investment property amounted to EUR 1,379 thousand in 2016 that is recorded under the
caption “Other operaling gains/ {losses)”. The gain in the six-month period ended 31 December 2015 was not

significant.

The main asset included in this caption corresponds to some office towers in Cadiz whose net book value amounts
to EUR 7,5 million at 31 December 2016. In the period ended 31 December 2016 the Group, an according to the
valuations provided by an independent sxpsrt, adjusted the accounting value of the investment property referred
to above to ils fair value, in accordance with the measurement bases described in Note 4.¢. The “Change in trade
provisions™ of the accompanying consolidated income statement for the exercise ended 31 December 2016
includes an amount of EUR 1,059 thousands corresponding to such charges (EUR 1.977 thousands at 31
December 2015) for the mentioned provision (Note 22),

The fair value of the investment preperties does not differ significantly from their net book value (see Note 12).

The Neinor Homes Group takes out the insurance policies it considers necessary to cover the risks which might
affect its investment property.

At the end of the exercise endsd 31 December 2016, rental income from investment property owned by the
consolidated companies amounted to EUR 1.109 thousand (EUR 804 thousand at 31 December 2015),

At 31 December 2016 and December 2015, the Group did not have any firm commitments to purchase or sell items
of investment property.

. Subsidiaries

Appendix | to the notes to these financial statements details the subsidiaries and information thereon {which
includes, inter alia, name, registered offices and the parcentage of direct and indirect ownership of the Parent).
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i1. _Current and non-gurrent financial assets

Detalls of these financial assets, by nature, at 31 December 2016 and 31 Dacember 2015, are as follows:

Thousands of euros

31.12.2016 31.12,2015
Non- Non-
current | Current | current | Current
Guarantees and deposits 336 4 98 45
Others - 19 - -
Total 336 23 98 45

12. Inventories

Details of *Inventories” at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 are as follows:

Thousands of euros

31.12.2016 31.12.2015
Sites and land (Note 19) 582,585 594,500
Construction work in progress 172,121 44.629
Completed buildings 271.966 430.580
Advances to suppliers 11 2.400
Less — Impairment losses (Note 9) (101.317) (138.819)
925.366 933,290

In the year ended 31 December 2016 borrowing costs amouniing to EUR 552 thousand ware capitalised to
inventories (in the six-month period ended 31 December 2015 no borrowing costs were capitalised).

The additions In the period ended 31 December 2016 relate mainly to the purchase of various building lots which
amounts to EUR 111,282 thousand. In this connection, “Trade and Qther Payables - Payable to Suppliers® under
current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheat as at 31 December 2016 includes EUR 11,875 thousand relating
to the deferred portion of the price in relation to the purchase of various plots of land and the remaining amount

matures in 2017.

Also, the Group handed over a property development in Madrid and another property devalepment in tha northern
part of Spain during 2016 and had 23 property developments recognised under “Construction work in progress” at

vear-end.

At 31 Dacember 2016, the assets originating from the iransaction described in Note 1 accounted for 55% of the
carrylng amount of the Group’s real estate portfolio (31 December 2015: 70%). It should be noted that a significant
portion of these assets have undergone development and therefore been classified under the "Development”
segment {see Note 6), and accordingly capitalized to "Inventories”, which shoauld be taken into account in any
comparison since this fact distorts their downward trend.
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At 31 December 2016, there are assets included under *Inventories” with a gross cost of EUR 355.959 thousand
{EUR 10.822 thousand at 31 December 2015) securing a loan the Group has assumed the borrower position as
the payment of the price arranged with the seller for the acquisition of a plot of land (see Note 17},

In addition, the Group has a credit fine with a limit of EUR 50.000 thousand, against which EUR 48.611 thousand
had been drawn down at 31 December 2016, This credit line is being used to finance acquisition of plots of land.
The related agreement dogs not provide for any specific asset as security, although the drawdowns are assignhed
to assets following approval by the lender, which reserves the right to demand that the corresponding mortgage be

created {see Note 17).

At 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, there were no commitments to sell any plots of land.

The property development sale commitments entered into with customers at 31 December 2016 and 31 December
2015, relating to those units in which a private purchase and sale agreement was signed, have resulted in the
coflection or reception of notes receivables amounting to EUR 29.495 and 12.571 thousand respectively, which
have been recognised under “Current liabilities - Customer advances” in the consolidated balance sheet at 31

December 2016 and 31 December 2015 (see Note 17).

In addition, at 30 December 20186, an undertaking was made to sell a real estate development, consisting of a
residential complex classified as "tourist apartments" (property under the condominium system for operation by
means of the temporary assignment of use of the furnished units, equipped for immediate use, and managed by a
tour operator), for EUR 24.250 thousand and subject to conditions precedent, which were met in January 2017.

Additionally, at 31 December 2015, the Group entered into land purchase commitment agreements subject to the
fulfilment of conditions precedent, mainly related to the registration of these assets, amounting o EUR 5,970
thousand, at the jand registry. In order to secure this commitment and due to the existence of a deferred payment
amounting to EUR 6.544 thousand, it was resolved to create a secondary security interest in favour of the creditor
on all the shares in Nelnor Homes, S.L.U., which were pledged to guarantee the deferred purchase price related
to the transaction described in Note 1. These purchase commitments were executed in a public deed in 2018, and

the pladge securing the deferred portion of the price is still in force.

The changes in 2016 in the write-downs associated with the inventories were as follows:

Thousands

of Euros
Balance at 01/01/16 138.819
Write-downs recognised 18.331
Write-downs reversed (53.966})
Transfers to "Investinent Property” (Note 9} (1.867)
Balance at 31/12/16 101,317

At 31 December 2016, the net realisable vaiue determined by Savills Consultorfa Inmobiliaria, S.A. for the
inventories and investment property (see Note 9) owned by the Group amounted to approximately EUR 1.404
million. *Development assets - Inventory” valuation amounted to EUR 1.120 million, “Legacy assets - Inventory”
valuation amounted to EUR 270 miflion and investment property valuation amounted to EUR 14 million,

approximately.

Considering the external appraiser's methodology described in Note 4-f, the key assumplions identified in the
appraisals for the development assets (see Note 6} are the discount rate and the sale prices. In the case of the
discount rate a sensitivity of +/- 100 basis points was established, based on the different economic scenarios
forecast in the short and medium term, as weli as the rate of return that would be required by other developers with
different characteristics to the Group. In addition, a positive performance of sale prices was envisaged, given that
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the appraisal models involved conservative assumptions on the current ecenomic situation and, accordingly a
sensitivity of + 1%/ +2% was set.

Assuming the remaining variables to be constant, the appraised values of development projects and the carrying
amount thereof would be affected as follows, taking into account the change in the key assumptions:

Thousands of Euros

Discount Rate Sale Price
Assumption +1% [ -1% +1% [ 2%
Increase (Decrease)
Change in appraised values {25.412) 26.262 18.374 36.729
Change in carrying amount {*) (1.085) 1.541 1.283 1.851

{*) The carrying amount is based on the lower of cost or realisable value. Increases in the net realisable value are
not necessarily accompanied by impacts on the carrying amount of inventories.

The Savills valuation models adopted by the Group are sufficiently conservative and prudent to make it
inappropriate to consider sensitivities to a negative price performance. In addition, the directors consider that we
are currently undergoing a price growth scenario and the forecasts point towards continuing in that posilive
direction. However, the Group has performed a sensitivity analysis considering a 1%/ 2% fall in prices in the base
scenario without subsequsent price growth and the other variables remaining constant. In such an adverse scenario,
which is not considered likely at the moment, the effect on the value of the real estate assets would be a reduction
of EUR 18.343 thousand and EUR 36.574 thousand, and the recegnition of additional impairment fosses of EUR
533 thousand and EUR 2.207 thousand, respectively.

The key assumption for the "legacy assets” (ses Notes 4-f and 6) is that relating to prices. In this regard, the Group
performed a sensitivity analysis with respect to a 1%/ 2% increaseffall in prices. Assuming the remaining variables
to be constant, the values of legacy assets and the carrying amount thereof would be affectad as follows, taking

into account the change in this assumption:

Thousands of Euros

Assumption Sale Price Sale Price
H% | 1% +1% [ +1%
Increase {Decrease)
Change in appraised values 2.632 (2.632) 5.2604 (5.264)
Change in carrying amount (*) 1.413 (1.431) 2.810 (2.888)

(*) The carrying amount is based on the lower of cost or realisable value. increases in the net reafisable value are
not necessarily accompanied by impacts on the carrying amount of inventories.

Lastly, the Group has recognised property assets with a carrying amount of EUR 8.474 thousand, net of impairment
losses of EUR 5,4 million, which it has not been passible to file in the Property Register for various reasons. Within
the framework of the purchase and sale agreement described in Note 1, Kutxabank, S.A. guarantees the
repurchase of these assets for an amount of EUR 13.9 million if by May 2017 they have not yet been filed. The
Group recognised impairment [osses associated with these assets on the understanding that Kutxabank will make
avery effort to effectively transfer them prior to the established deadline.
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*Trade and other receivables® includes the following items:

13. Trade and other receivables

Thousands of euros
31.12.2016 | 31122015
Trade receivables and notes receivables 16.519 26,072
Other receivables — Down Payments 4,366 9.104
Other receivables — Provision of Services 1.223 2,160
Impairment (Notes 9 and 22.1) (1.555) (1.574)
20,553 35,702

“Trade Notes Receivable” in the foregoing table mainly includes the amount receivable relating to the asset
management and administration agreement entered into between various companies of the Kutxabank Group and
Neinor Homes, S.L.U. (see Nota 1), amounting to EUR 10.544 thousand.

“Other receivables™ in the foregoing table includes mainly the amounts receivable from third parties for services
rendered (see Notes 22.a and 23) and amounts paid in advance by the Group to service providers amounting to
EUR 4.366 thousands and EUR 9.104 thousands, respectively, as of 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015,

Trade receivables do not generate interest, in general terms and there are no doubtful assets for which impairment
losses additional to those already recognised at year-end must be recognised.

The Group periodically analyses the risk of insolvency of its accounts receivable by updating the related provision
for impairment losses. The Group's directors consider that the amount of trade and other receivables approximates

their fair value.

14. __Cash and cash equivalents

“Cash and cash equivalents” includes the Group’s cash on hand and in short-term bank deposits with an initial
maturity of three months or less. The carrying amount of these assets is similar to their fair value,

There is no restriction for the availability of the cash and cash equivalents of the Group neither as of 31 Dacember
2016 nor 31 December 2015, except for the fact that, as described in Law 20/2018, of July 14, advances received
and associated with a development (see Note 18) are deposited in a specfal account, separate from any other
class of funds befonging to the Group, and are only drawn against in connection with the construction of the
developments. The balance subject to this restriction amounted to EUR 21,373 thousand at 31 December 2018,
which differs from the advances (see Note 18) as a result of the cash used to pay the progress billings of
developments to which such advances are allocated. Also the guarantees (see Note 21) differ from such advances
as guarantees were created in January 2017 in relation to advances recsived at the end of December 2016,
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15. _Capital and reserves
a} Share capital

The Parent was incorporated on 4 December 2014 with share capital of EUR 3,000, represented by 3,000 shares
with a par value of EUR 1 each, which were fully subscribed and paid by Kutxabank, S.A.

Subsequently, on 26 December 2014, the Parent increased its share capital by approximately EUR 730,146
thousand, through the issue of EUR 730,146,447 shares of EUR 1 par value each. These shares were fully
subscribed and paid by the various Kutxabank Group companies contributing the property assets involved in the
transaction described in Note 1, through the non-monetary contribution of their respective direct and indirect
holdings in the subsidiaries that currently comprise, together with the Parent, the Neinor Homes Group (see

Appendix I).

On 31 December 2014, the aforementioned companies of the Kutxabank Group sold their respective holdings in
the Parent, which they owned by virtue of the capital increase described above, lo Kutxabank, S.A. and,
accordingly, at 31 December 2014, Kutxabank, S.A. was the sole shareholder of the Parent,

On 11 May 2015, once the condition precedent (which was established in the capital increase approved on 31
December 2014 of approximately EUR 86,729 thousand) was met on 30 April 2015, Kutxabank, S.A., sole
shareholder of the Parent on the aforementioned date, approved the effectiveness of this capital increase. This
capital increase was fully subscribed and paid by the aforementioned sole shareholder through the non-menetary
contribution of certain properly assets amounting to approximately EUR 83,835 thousand, and the monstary
contribution of the remaining amount.

Therefore, by virtue of the agreements adopted by the parties in the context of the transaction described in Note 1,
on 11 May 2015, Kutxabank, S.A. approved another capital increase amounting to EUR 123,000 thousand, which

it subscribed and paid in full in cash.

As describad in Note 1, following these transactions, on 14 May 2015 Kutxabank, S.A. sold all its holdings in the
Parent to Neinor Holdings, S.L.U. which, therefore, became the sole shareholder of the Parent from that date. The

Parent is registered as a sole shareholder company.

On 30 May 20186, the Parent's sole shareholder resolved to reduce capital by EUR 189.331 thousand through the
acquisition by the Parent from its sole shareholder (Neinor Holdings, S.L.U.) of 198.330.896 treasury shares of
FUR 1 par value each to subsequently retire them pursuant to Arlicles 338 et seq. of the Spanish Limited Liability
Companies Law. The amount was paid in full by the sole shareholder in 2018. Also, this capital reduction was
executed in a public deed and registered at the Mercantile Registry on 15 June and 29 July 2016, respectively.

On 15 June 2016 and 21 November 2018, the Parent's sole shareholder also resolved to reduce capital by EUR
5.800 thousand and EUR 5.350 thousand, respectively, through the acquisition by the Parent from its sole
shareholder (Neinor Holdings, S.L.U.) of 5.900.034 treasury shares and of 5.350.000 treasury shares of EUR 1 par
value each to subsequently retire them pursuant to Articles 338 et seq. of the Spanish Limited Liability Companies
Law. These amounts were paid in full by the sole shareholder (Neinor Holdings, S.L.U.) in June 2016 and
November 2016, respectively. Also, these capital reductions were exscuted in public deeds on 19 July and 23
November 2018, respectively, and were registered at the Mercantile Registry on 8 September and 30 December

2018, respectively.

As a consequence, at 31 December 2016, the Parent's share capital is represented by 729.297.000 fully subscribed
and paid bearer shares of EUR 1 per value each (939.877.930 shares of EUR 1 per value at 31 December 2015).

All shares cariy the same voling and dividend rights.

The Parent's share capital is fully owned by Neinor Holdings, S.L.U., of which its sole shareholder is LSREF3 Lion
investments, S.4.r.l., with Its registered address in Rue Du Puils Romains 33, Bertrange, Luxembourg.
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At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Company's shares had been pledged as security for payment of the deferred
amount in the Lion transaction described in Note 1 (see Note 27).

h) Reserves of the Parent

Legal reserve

Under Article 274 of the Consclidated Text of the Spanish Limited Liability Companies Law, 10% of net profit for
each year must be transferred to the legal reserve until the balance of this reserve reaches at least 20% of the

share capital,

The legal reserve may be used to increase capital provided that the remaining reserve balance does not fall befow
10% of the increased share capital amount.

Otherwise, until the legal reserve exceeds 20% of share capital, it can only be used to offset losses, provided that
sufficient other reserves are not available for this purpose.

At 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 legal reserve was not fully contributed.
¢) Reserves at fully consolldated companies

Details, by company, of reserves at fully consolidated companiss at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015
are as follows:

Thousands of euros

Company 31.12,2016 (*¥) | 31.12.2015
Full consolidation:
Parent and consolidation adjustments (¥} 7.980 573
Neinor Norte, S.L.U. (17.299 (1.436)
Proimociones Neinor 1, S.L.U. (269) (240)
Promociones Neinor 2, S.L.U. (14.964) (14.944)
Promociones Neinor 3, S.L.U, (1.056) (987)
Promociones Neinor 4, S.L.1J, (5.362) (5.323)
Promocionies Neinor 5, S.L.U. (5.441) (5.424)
Neinor Peninsnla, S.1..U. (43.322) (6.229)
Neinor Sur, S.L.U. (15.432) 5.612
(100.165) (28.398)

{") The Parent has also set up a legal reserve of EUR 823 thousand not included in this detail.
(**) The reserve of fully consolidated companies at 31 December 2018 was reduced by EUR 78 thousand

in relation to expenses assoclated with the capital reduclions carried out by the Parent and subsidiaries of
the Neinor Homes Group in 2016 (see Note 15-a).
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At 31 December 2016 and 2015 the negative reserves contributed by the subsidiaries Promociones Neinor 1,
S.L.U., Promociones Neinor 2, S.L.U., Promociones Neinor 3, S.L.U., Promociones Neinor 4, S.L.U. and
Promociones Neinor 5, S.L.U. arose as regards of the difference at the date when the Neinor Homes Group was
created between the amounts the financial interests in these subsidiaries were contributed to the Group (spacifically
to the subsidiary Neinor Norte, S.L.U., its direct shareholder) and their underlying carrying amounts at that date
ware negative, due to the impairment recognised in connection with all their property assets. When the confribution
was made, the Kuixabank Group intended the other investees of Kuixabank to make a direct contribution to restore
their equity position so as not to give rise to any loss for Neinor Norte, S.L.U. Lastly, this contribution was made in
2015 by Kutxabank directly through a capital increase at Neinor Homes, S.L.U. prior to its transfer to Neinor
Holdings, $.L.U. This capital increase was perfarmed in steps at Neinor Norte, S.L.U. and its investees including,
among others, those which had an equity imbalance, and the situation was remedied prior to the Lion transaction

described in Note 1.

At November 2015, Neinor Holdings S.L.U, sole shareholder of Neinor Homes S.LU., carried out a shareholder
contribution increase to the mentioned entity amounting to EUR 1.348 thousand. The shareholder contribution was
related to the arrangement signed at December 2014 between Kutxabank and Neinor Holdings S.1., as explained
in the Note 1 of this consolidated financial statement, in the form of a price adjustment to compensate for the
expenses paid by the Group to a Development and Apporlionment Entity {see Note 16).

As mentioned In the Note 2.h, subsequently to the acquisition of the entity Globan Endurance $.A.U, and after its

merger within the entity Group Neinor Sur, S.L.U., Neinor Holdings carried out a shareholder contribution forgiving
the debt held against this enfity, which amounted to EUR 8.684 thousand approximately.

d} Shares of the Parent
The Parent did not hold any treasury shares at the end of each reporting period.

Howaver, as noted above, the Parent has carried out the following transactions with treasury shares during the
exercise ended in 31 December 2016;

Description Treasury Shares | Par value (EUR)
Share Capital af January 1, 2016 939.877.930 939.877.930
Mercantile Registry dates:
29 July 2016 199.330.896 199.330.896
8 September 5.900.034 5.900.034
30 December 2016 5.350.000 5.350.000
Reductions of capital 210.580.930 210.580.930
Share Capital at December 31, 2016 729.297.000 729.297.000

¢) Dividends paid
No dividends were paid in either 2016 or 2015.
Also, there are covenants associated with certain financing agreements entered info by the Group that limit the

distribution of dividends if the equity of the Parent is lower than EUR 420 million and if the "Net Financial
Debt/Equity” ratio Is below 1,6.
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16.  Provisions

aj} Current provisions

At 31 December 2016

Changes in current provisions in 2016 and 2015 are as foftows:

Thousands of euros

Other
provisions
For taxes (see | (see Note
Description Notes 22.d) 22.d) Total
Balance at 31 December 2015 4.184 9.806 13.99¢
Charges 94 2.301 2.895
Amounts used (2.242) (5.584) {7.826)
Balance at 31 December 2016 2.036 7.023 9.059
At 31 December 2015
Thousands of euros
Other
provisions
For taxes (see | (see Note
Description Notes 22.d) 22.d and ) Total
Balance at 30 June 2015 2.997 2.861 5.858
Charges 1.709 6.879 8.588
Amounts used (522) 66 {450)
Transfers - - -
Balance at 31 December 2015 4.184 0.806 13.990

*QOther provisions™ caption includes, mainly, amounts set aside warranty costs, basically after-sale expenses,
as well as other construction costs not yet incurred. These provisions are recognised at the date of sale of the
refated products according to the Group's best estimate of the possible consideration required to settle the

Group’s liability.

Also, "For Taxes” caption in the foregoing table includes, mainly, the provisions recognised in relation to the
taxes accrued in the period and which, at the reporting dates, have not been settled (mainly property tax) and
the provision relating to non-deductible VAT as a result of applying the deductible proportion rule that has not

yet been adjusted.




At each reporting date the Group assesses the estimated amounts required for probable or certain liabilities
where payment is still not entirely determinable with regard to their exact amount, or the dates on which they
will arise are uncerain since they depend on the fulfilment of certain conditions. Where appropriate, it
recognises the related provisions, At 31 December 2016, the Group had not recognised any provisions in this
conneclion since the Parent's directors, and its legal advisors, considered that the possible impacts for the
Group arising from these liabilities would not be significant. In this connection, at 31 December 2016 there are
legal claims in relation with assets owned by the different companies of the Group for a total amount of EUR
4,5 million (at 31 December 2015 EUR 6,1 milien), mainly referred to the return of retentions to suppliers,
construction faults repairs and expropriation appraisals contestations, as well as a legal claim for an
undetermined amount regarding the contestation of building licenses, which are possible to result in the
negative impact for the Group but that, in any case, and according to the agreements arranged in the context
of the transaction described in Note 1, would be covered by Kutxabank Group. According to the Parent's
directors, such compensation, if that is the case, that would be received by ils sole shareholder, Neinor
Holdings, S.L.U., would be transferred to the Neinor Homes Group so as the later would not suffered any
negative impact as a result of the aforementioned legal claims (see note 15 and 28). As a consequence, the
directors of the various companies comprising the Neinor Homes Group consider that the provisions made are
adequate to cover potential risks in connection with claims under way and that if these risks materialise for
amounts higher than these provisions, the additional liabilities would not have a significant impact on the

Group's financial statements.
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17. Bank borrowings and other financial llabilities

Details of bank borrowings and other financial liabilities at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 are as

follows:

Thousands of euros
31122016 31.12.2015
Long-terin bank borrowings:
Credit lines (*) 26.623 -
Short-term financial liabilities with sole
shareholder {see Note 23):
Inferest payable - 193
Other accounts payable 3.071 98.887
Short-term Bank borrowings (see Note 23):
Interest payable 19¢ 74
Mortgage loans (*) 201.569 10,143
Credit lines (%) 68.416 20.249
Other loans (*) 6.893 32,526
Other liabilities 288 26
Total 307.050 162.098
Scheduled maturities:
2016 - 152.855
2017 (*%) 38.338 9.243
2018 7.343 -
2019 249.792 -
2020 3% -
2021 and following 11.181 -
Total unmatured borrowings 307.050 162.098

(*) Borrowings are presented at amortised cost, net of the debt arrangement expenses
incurred in 2016 amounting to EUR 5,178 thousand, of which EUR 1.088 thousand were
charged 1o “Finance Costs (Net of Capltalised Borrgwing Costs)” in the consofidated

statement of profit or loss for 2016,

(**) There are EUR 17,5 miilion relating to credit facilities linked to developments, the maturity

of which could be extended to 2019.
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Long-term bank borrowings

"Long-Term Bank Borrowings" includes a credit line aimed at providing the Group with additional liquidity for its
ordinary operations not directly associated with land purchases, The credit line, which was arranged by the Group’s
Parentin 2016, has a limit of EUR 30 million and has final maturity in 2019. The credit line has been drawn down
in fult and the remainder is recognised under *Short ~ Term Bank Borrowings” as it was established that the limit
thersof be reduced by EUR 3 million in 2017, by EUR 9 million in 2018 and by EUR 18 million in 2019.

Also, the Parent has assigned, as a performance guarantes to secure the full repayment of the credit iine, the
collection rights consisting of the payments under the asset administration and management agreement entered

into with Kutxabank, S.A. on 14 May 2015.

In addition, the borrowers in this agreement are all the Neinor Homes Group companies (see Appendix 1), all with
joint and several liability.

Payables to sole shareholder

The balance of this line item at 31 December 2016 relates to the account payable to the Parent's sole sharehoider
in relation to income tax under the consolidated tax regime under which both the Neinor Homes Group and its scle
shareholder are taxed on a consolidated basis (see Note 20), amounting to EUR 3.071 thousand (31 December

2015: EUR 615 thousand).

At 31 December 2015, this line item included the outstanding balance of a loan from Nelnor Holdings, S.L.U,, for
an initial amount of EUR 105.000 thousand, received on 23 October 2015. This loan was partially repaid
(approximately EUR 6.728 thousand were repaid) on 30 November 2015, and the remainder of the loan was repaid
in full in 2018, together with the related interest payable at 31 December 2015 and the interest incurred in 2018,

for an aggregate amount of EUR 729 thousand.

Shert-term bank borrowings

Mortgage loans

The balance recognized under “Bank borrowings — Mortgage loans for land” in the foregoing table relates to the
amount payable on loans regarding plots of land which secure repayment of these loans. These loans bear interest
at a market rate and ultimately mature in 2017, 2018 and 2019, except for three morigage loans with final maturity

in 2048 and 2049.

Certain Group companies (see Appendix I} are jointly and severally guaranteeing most of these loans.

More specifically, in 2016 the Group arranged 53 new mortgage loans with a nominal value of EUR 195.700
thousand, which ware recognized in the consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2016 nst of the
related debt arrangement expenses of EUR 2.899 thousand.

The Group also arranged five additional loans in 2016 for a nominal amount of EUR 37.984 thousand, which had
not been drawn down by the Group at 31 December 20186,

At 31 December 2015, the Company only had one loan with these terms and conditions, amounting to EUR 10,143
thousand, which was still outstanding at 31 December 2016 following the repayment of EUR 1.375 thousand in

2018,
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Credit lines

In connection with the credit lines, in 2016 the Group arranged seven new lines with a limit of EUR 47.705 thousand,
against which EUR 47.243 thousand have been drawn down (EUR 26,623 thousand of which are classified as non-

current liabilities).

On 15 June 20185, the Group arranged a credit facility with a bank with a limit of EUR 30.000 thousand and maturing
on 15 December 2018, which was novated in 20186, increasing the limit to EUR 50.000 thousand and extending
the maturity to 2019. The aim of the facility is to finance the payment of the deferred price of the land purchases,
and the Group must support all the drawdowns made against it through a credit facility drawdown request signed
by the Group that specifies the amount bsing requested and contains a description of the property to be acquired.
EUR 48.611 thousand had been drawn down at 31 December 2016, and this amount was classified as a current
liability due to the real estate nature of the facifity (31 December 2015; EUR 20.343 thousand). In relation to this
credit facility, the Neinor Homes Group has underiaken to arrange first mortgages at the request of the bank in
order o secure the facility up to an amount of EUR 25 million. Such a request had not been made at 31 Decamber
2016 and, therefere, the directors consider that the borrowings should be associated directly with the property

developments being firanced by it.

The debt arrangement expenses associated with these credit lines amounted to EUR 815 thousand at 31
December 2016.

QOther loans

The caption "Other loans” includes the balance drawn down on the loans received by the Group in this reporting
period in order to finance input VAT in certain land purchase transactions, which mature in 2017 and earn interest
at a market rate. The limit on these loans amounts to EUR 15 million of which the amount of EUR 6.893 has been
disposed at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015 EUR 5.564 thousand). To secura repayment of the
borrowings, the receivables relafing to input VAT arising for the public administration in these transactions were

pledged to the financial institutions (see Note 20).

Lastly, *Bank borrowings — Other loans® in the foregoing table at 31 December 2015 included the balance drawn
down on the credits received by the Group in this reporting pericd in order to finance input VAT in certain land
purchase transactions, which matured in 2016 and sarned interest at a market rate. The balance of this credit,
which amounted toc EUR 26,962 thousand has been cancelled during the current period. .

Covenants and early repayment clauses

In connection with the new borrowings arranged by the Group in 2016 and disclosed above, the Group has certain
early repayment clauses associated with the loans and credit lines, including most notably the following:

»  Any change in the shareholder structure of the Parent that gives rise to a change of control over it, control
being taken to be any of the cases provided for in Article 42 of the Spanish Commercial Code (see Note

28).

« Reduction of the Parent's equity to below EUR 425 million.

+ Obligation to achieve a firm and irrevocable LTV Ratio, taken to be the ratio of Net Debt to the Net Value
of the Group's Propertias {in both cases capex financing should be deducted), which must be below 45-
50%, depending on each bank.

+ Firm and irrevocable obligation for Lone Star {(see Note 1) to ensure that its indirect ownership interest in
the share capital of the Parent does not drop fo below 51% (see Note 28).
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18.

At year-end 2018, the Group was fully compliant with the covenants and clauses established in the aforementioned
loans (see Note 28).

Other

There are other amounts included in the borrowings indicated above, totalling EUR 64.633 thousand, that have
been drawn down against financing granted by a bank related to the Group as indicated in Note 23. The
aforementioned amount relates to mortgage loans (EUR 47.071 thousand), credit lines (EUR 17.530 thousand)

and acerued interest payable (EUR 32 thousand).

In addition, the Group had an undrawn reverse factoring line at 31 December 2016 with a limit of EUR 3.333
thousand at that date.

All the loans and credit facilities outstanding at 31 December 2016 indicated above ware arranged with leading
banks and bear interest tied to Euribor plus market spreads.

fn 2016 the Group paid borrowing costs amounting lo EUR 9.000 thousand plus debt arrangement expenses of
EUR 5.178 thousand {of which EUR 1.088 thousand were charged to “Finance Costs” in the consclidated slatement
of profit or loss for 2016 and EUR 4.090 thousand were deducted from the Group's bank borrowings recognised in
the consolidated balance shest), and borrowing costs of EUR 552 thousand were capitalised to inventories (see

Note 12).

The interest rate applicable to the Group, in general tarms, is tied to Euribor plus a market spread ranging from 1%
to 2.5%. The average cost of the borrowings calculated for 2018 is approximately 2,37%.

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group companies had loans and undrawn credit facilities totalling EUR 9.671
thousand and EUR 23.600 thousand, respectivaly.

Other current and non-current liabllitles

Details of other current and non-current liabilities at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 are as follows:

Thousands of euros
31,12,2016 31.12.2015
Non-current Current Non-current Crrrent
Guarantees and deposits received 34 - 65 -
Remuneration payable - 1.556 - 762
Customer advances {see Note 12) - 29.695 - 12.818
Total, gross 34 31.251 65 13.580

“Guarantees and deposits received” includes mainly guarantee deposits paid by lessees.
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19. Current and non-current trade and other pavables

*Trade and other payables”™ mainly includes balances payable for trade purchases and related costs. At 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2015 this capiion also includes a payable amounting EUR 11.875 and EUR
53.257 thousand respectively corresponding to the deferred portion of the price of a fand purchased in these

exercises (see note 12)
The carrying amount of trade payables is similar to thelr fair value.

Information regarding the weighted average payment term to suppliers. Final Provision Two of Law
3112014 of 3 December

Next it is detailed the information required by the Final Provision Two of Law 31/2014 of 3 December, that has
been prepared applying the corresponding rules issued by the Accounting and Auditing Institute at 29 January
2018, which relates to the information to be included in the annual financial statements about weighted average

payment term to suppliers.

Period ended
31 December

6 months
period ended
31 December

Quistanding payments ratio

2016 2015

Days Days
Weighted average payment term 1o suppliers 36 10
Paid operations ratio 34 7
43 47

Thousands of

Thousands

euras of euros
Total payments made 303.036 208.663
Total outstanding payments 22.803 14.834

The figures in the preceding table on payments to suppliers refer to those whose nature make them trade creditors
hecause they are suppliers of goods and services. Therefore, they include the figures relating to “Current trade and
other payables” under current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet. Deferred partion of the price in relation
to the purchase of various plots of fand {Nota 12) has not been considered for this calculation.

“Woeighted average payment term to suppliers” is taken to be the period that elapses from the delivery of the goods
or the provision of the services by the supplier to the effective payment of the transaction.

Pursuant to Law 11/20083, of 26 July, establishing measures on combating late payment in commercial transactions,
the statutory payment period applicable to the Company at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 was 30
days, unless a longer pericd has been agreed, which in no case may exceed 60 days. In this connection, and for
the calculations referred to above, the Group has considered in all cases a maximum legal term of 30 days, no

matter which the arranged conditions with the suppliers are.
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20. Tax matters

a)

b)

Consolidated tax group

At the end of 2014, the Parent and the subsidiary Neinor Norte, S.A., as subsidiaries in the tax group of which
Kutxabank, S.A. is the Parent, decided to apply the consolidated tax regime regulated in Title VI, Chapter VI of
Bizkaia Corporation Tax Regulation 11/2013, of 5 December, with effect from the tax year commencing on 1
January 2014, Therefore, in 2014, the aforementioned companies, together with the subsidiaries Promociones
Neinor 1, S.L.U., Promocionss Neinor 2, S.L.U,, Promocianes Neinor 3, S.L.U., Promacionsas MNeinor 4, S.L.UL
and Promocdiones Neinor 5, S.L.U., paid taxes under the aforementioned special consolidated tax regime as

part of the Kutxabank Group.

In any event, as a result of the Neinor Homes Group's exit from the Kutxabank Group as a result of the
agreements adopted on 14 May 2015 (see Note 1), the various Group companies paid taxes in this six-month
period ended at 30 June 2015 in accordance with the general, individual tax regime.

Furthermore, at 30 June 2015, the sole shareholder of the Parent notified the tax authorities of its decision to
apply the consolidated tax regime mentioned above to the tax group of which it is the Parent, comprising the
subsidiaries Neinor Homes, S.1..U., Neinor Norte, S.L.U., Promociones Neinor 1, S.L.U., Promociones Neinor
2, S.L.U., Promociones Neinor 3, S.L.U., Promocicnes Neinor 4, $.L.U, and Promociones Neinor 5, S.L.U., with
effect from the tax year commencing on 1 July 2015.

Tax rufes and years open for review by the tax authorities

All the Group companies, except the subsidiaries Neinor Peninsula, 8.L.U. and Neinor Sur, S.L.U., which pay
income tax as from the years commencing 1 January 2015 in accordance with Corporation Tax Law 27/2014,
of 5 December, pay taxes pursuant to Bizkaia Corporation Tax Regulation 11/2013.

Neinor Peninsula, S.L.U. and Neinor Sur, S.L.U. file individual tax returns pursuant to Spanish Income Tax Law
27/2014, of 27 November.

At 31 December 2015, the Parent and the subsidiaries Neinor Norte, $.L.U. and Neinor Peninsula, S.L.U. have
all the years open for review by the tax authorities since their incorporation, which took place at the end of 2014,
The subsidiary Neinor Sur, S.L.U. has the last five years open fo review in relation to income tax and the (ast
four years open to review for all other taxes applicable to it. The other companies have the last four years open
to review for all taxes. In this connection, Provincial Regulation 11/2013 establishes that all tax credits applied
and tax losses generated in prior years can be reviewed when they are applied in any of the years open to
review, whife Law 27/2014 of 27 November, establishes a review term of ten years.

The directors of the Parent do not expect any significant additional liabilities not already covered fo arise as a
result of the inspections that could cccur for the years open to inspection.
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¢) Tax receivables and payables

Details of the main tax receivables and payables are as follows:

Thousands of euros

31.12.2016 31.12.2015
Tax assels Tax liabilities Tax assets Tax liabilities
Non- Non- Noun- Non-
corrent Current current Current current Currgnt current Current

VAT receivable / payable (Note 17) - 8.158 - 3.753 - 34.380 - 4.232
Deferred tax asset - - - - - - -
[ncome tax receivable - 790 - - - - - -
Personal income tax withheldings ) ) ) ) ) )
payable
Secial Security contributicns payable - - - 287 - - - 133
Deferred tax liability - - 32i - - -
Others - 102 364 - 30 - 374

- 2.050 ky2| 4.404 - 34.460 4,739

With regard to VAT, the various Group companies applied the deductible proportion rule set forth in Article 106
of VAT Law 37/1992, of 28 December (Article 108 of Provincial VAT Law 7/1994, of 14 December), which
establishes that the amounts of tax paid in the acquisition of goods and services used solely in transactions
made that give rise to the right to deduction may be deducted in full.
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d} Reconcifiation of accounting profitiloss to tax profitiioss

The reconciliation of the accounting profit/loss to consolidated income tax expensefincome for the year is as

follows:

At 31 December 20186

Thousands of euros
Group Other
0211BSC entities Total

Profit/(Loss) before tax 15.359 (11.231) 4,128
Permanent differences - 45 688 733
Temporary differences (%) (5.009) (21.143) (26.152)
Preliminary Taxable income/{loss) 10,395 {31.686) (21.291)
Taxable income/(loss) 10,395 (31.686) (21.291)
Taxable income - 28% tax rate (positive basis) 10.395 - 10.395
Taxable loss - 25% tax rate (negative basis) - {31.686) (31.686)
Tax rate 28% 25% -

Tax accrued (2.911) 7.922 5.011
Not capitalised Tax assets accrued in the period - (7.922) (7.922)
Other adjustments for income tax 130 - 130
Previous years income tax regularization (290) - {290)
Income fax expense (3.071) - (3.071)

(*) Not capitalized.
At 31 December 2015
Thousands of euros
Group Other
0211BSC entities Total

Profit/(Loss) before tax (7.124) (63.127) (70.251)
Permanent differences - 5 31 36
Temporary differences (¥) 8.962 25.847 34.809
Preliminary Taxable income/(loss) 1.843 (37.249) (35.400)
Taxable income/(loss) 1.843 (37.249) (35.406)
Taxable income - 28% tax rate (positive basis) 1.843 - 1.843
Taxable loss - 28% tax rate (negative basis) - (37.249) (37.249)
Tax rate 28% 28% 28%
Tax accrued {516) 10.430 9.914
Not capitalised Tax assets acerued in the period - (10.430) {10.430)
Other adjustments for income tax (99) - (99)
Income tax expense (615) - (615)

{*) Not capitalized.

16




el

The permanent differences included in the preceding table correspond, mainly, to certain expenses recorded
in the period that have not been considered deductible (see Note 18). Additicnally, taking into account a
conservative criteria that can be assumed by the tax authorities, the Group has considered deductible those
impairments calculated on the basis of appraisals, which are carried out by independent experts not related to
the Group and which are going to be available for the income tax file.

Tax losses of 2014 generated by the subsidiaries Neinor Sur, 8.L.U., Promociones Neinor 1, S.L.U.,
Promociones Neinor 2, S.L.U., Promociones Neinor 3, S.L.U., Promociones Neinor 4, S.L.U. and Promociones
Neinor 5, S.L.U. before their integration in the Neinor Homes Groups are disclosed in the chapler e) of this
Note, Some adjustments to the accounting profitoss, mainly related to charges for impaiment of inventories,
were considered when estimating the fax losses. These adjustments are disclosed in the chapter f} to this Note

Tax losses

Details of the tax losses of the different companies included in the Neinor Homes Group at 31 December 20186,
which correspond with those generated by the subsidiaries Neinor Sur, S.L.U., Promociones Neinor 1, S.L.U,,
Promaociones Neinor 2, 8.L.U., Promociones Neinor 3, S.L.U., Promociones Neinor 4, $.L.U, and Promociones

Neinor 5, S.L.U. are as follows:

Thousands of euros
Year of genteration Unrecognised Recognised Year of maturity

Group tax losses
0211BSC:;
2008 Exercise (*) 185 - 2028
2010 Exercise (*) 813 - 2028
2011 Exercise (*) 8.567 - 2028
2012 Exercise (¥) 18.711 - 2028
2013 Exercise (¥} 1.798 - 2028
2014 Exercise (*) 167 - 2029
30 June 2015 (*) 2.200 - 2030
31 December 2015 4.595 “ 2030
Other entities tax loses -
2009 Exercise 5
2011 Exercise 2.479 - No time limit
2012 Exercise 8.617 - No time limit
2013 Exercise 26.805 - No time limit
2014 Exercise 16.241 - No time Hntit
30 June 2015 8.170 - No time Hmit
31 December 2015 (¥¥) 46.463 - No time limit
2016 Exercise 31.687 -
Total 177.803 -

{*) Generaled outside the tax Group led by Neinor Hotdings, S.L.U.
(**) The difference vith respect to the situation indicated in the consolidated financiat statements for the six-

month period ended 31 December 2015 arose from the tax loss ulfimately reported in the income tax
return filed in July 2016,
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The tax group's tax losses incurred prior to the year commencing 1 July 2015 can only be offset against the
taxable profit earned individually by the companies themselves that gensrated it, before considering the tax

bases corresponding to 20186.

According to the tax rules currently in force, the tax losses with no time limit included in the preceding table,
may be offset in 2017 against the taxable profit for the following tax periods up to the following limits:

o 70% of the tax base prior to offset, with a minimum of EUR 1 million, if revenue is lower than EUR 20

miilion.
s 50% of the tax base prior to offset, with a minimum of EUR 1 million, if revenue is higher than EUR 20

million but lower than EUR 60 million.
«  25% of the tax base prior to offset, with a minimum of EUR 1 million, if revenus is higher than EUR 60

million,

The future taxable profits tc be considered for the offsetting of the tax losses with a maturity date disclosed in
the table above are not subject to any timit.

The Group has not recorded the deferred tax assets related to the aforementioned tax losses since the Group's
directors consider that, given the current ecoenomic scenery and lack of consolidated trends in the Real Estate
industry, their recavery by the generating subsidiaries is not reasonably supported.

f) Tax credits

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group had unrecognised tax credits amounting to EUR 93 thousand.

g) Deferred Taxes

In accordance with the current tax legislation applicable to the Group companies, certain temporary differences
may arise that should be taken info account in the estimate of the income tax base and the related income tax

expense.

In this regard, at 31 December 2015, before taking into consideration the adjustments made in the estimate of
the tax base relating to this reporting period, there are unrecognised deferred taxes amounting 1o EUR 61.654
thousand {in the tax base) (EUR 80.700 thousand at 31 December 2015) relating to adjustments to the tax base
made, mainly for impairment of inventories, by the subsidiary Neinor Sur, S.L.U.

As in the case of negative tax bases (and for the same reason) the accompanying consolidated financial
statements do not include the deferred tax assets relating to these deferred taxes.

h) Other tax matters

Following the publication of Royal Decree-Law 3/2016, of 2 December, adopling tax measures for tax periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016, the following changes were introduced in relation to income tax for
companies that file tax returns under the tax legislation in force in Spain except for Navarre and the Basque

Country:

e For the taxpayers whose revenue is less than EUR 20 million during the twelve months prior to the date
on which the tax period commences, the aggregate amount of the double taxalion tax credits cannot

exceed 50% of the taxpayer's gross tax payable.
+ A system of mandatory reversal of the impairment on shares representing equity interests is established,

in addition to the cases for reversal initially provided for. Specifically, it is foreseen that, in any case, the
amount of the reversal of the impairment losses on the shares representing equity interests in entities that
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were deductible for income tax purposes in tax pariods commencing prior to 1 January 2013 shall be
included, at least, in equal portions in the tex base for each of the first five tax periods commencing on or
after. However this tax measure is not applicable for the Group, currently.

Also, from 1 January 2017, among other amendments, it should be noted that there is a limitation of the
deductibility of losses incurred on the transfer of equity invesiments.

21. Guarantee commitments to third parties and other contingent liabifities

At 31 December 2016 the Group had provided guarantees to third paities for a total amount of EUR 43.427
thousand (EUR 22.386 thousand at 31 Decamber 2015). Included in this figure there is an amount of EUR
15.654 thousand (EUR 15.404 thousand at 31 December 2015) thousand related mainly to guarantees provided
to different local authorities to secure the development of different properties and EUR 27.773 thousand to
secure payments in advance received by customers (EUR 6.646 thousand at 31 December 2015).

Additionally, the Group has received at 31 December 2018 from different suppliers and contractors guarantees
for a total amount of EUR 8.424 thousand (EUR 431 thousand at 31 December 2015) to secure the perfect
completion of the corresponding construction works.

The Parent's directors do not expect any additional kabilities to arise in connection with the aforementioned
guarantees.

22. Revenug and expense
a) Revenues

The breakdown of revenues is as follows:

Thousands of euros

31.12.2016131.12,2015
Legacy 164.293 87.246
Development 36.6011 31.974
Assets Management - Servicing 27.661 14.452
Other / Corporate - 1.016
Total 228.565 | 134.688

According to the asset administration and management agreement entered into by the Parent and various
Kutxabank Group companies dated on 14 May 2015, the Group billed during the 2016 exercise an amaunt of
EUR 27.661 thousand to the aforementioned companies of the Kutxabank Group (EUR 14.452 thousand at 31

December 2015).

All of the Group revenues have been obtained in Spain.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group minimum lease payment commitments to lessees are not
significant.
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b) Costof sales

Details of this heading in the consolidated income statement are as follows:

Thousands of euros
Total Group
31.12.2016]31.12.2015
Cost of sales 205.360 104.871
Sites and land 34.271 12,171
Construction work in
progress and comnpleted
buildings 171.089 92.700
¢} Employee benefits expense and average headcount
Details of "Employee bensfits expense” are as follows:
Thousands of euros
31.12.2016 | 31.12.2015
Wages, salaries and similar expenses 9.527 3.931
Termination benefits 186 156
Social security costs 1.840 690
Other employee benefit costs 124 31
Total 11.677 4,808

At December 2016, the average headcount at Group companies was 170 (119 at 31 December 2015). The

breakdown by category is as follows:

31.12.2016 31.12.2015
Women Men Total Women Men Total
Higher degree staff’ 51 83 134 31 ot 92
Medium degree staff 48 16 64 26 17 43
Total 99 99 198 57 78 135

In addition, at 31 December 20186, the Group had 3 employees with a disability of more than 33% (at 31
Dacember 2015, there were no employses with a disability equal to or greater than 33).
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d) External services

Details of this heading in the consolidated income statement are as follows:

Thousands of euros

31.12.2016 | 31.12.2015
Leases and royaltics 685 38
Maintenance 3.334 2,238
Independent professional services 20.572 10.838
Transport 3 -
Insurance premiums 343 144
Bank Services 23 -
Advertising and marketing 2.743 1.002
Supplies 263 92
Other external services 3.139 5.016
Levies (see Note 16) 9.093 5.838
Total 40,198 25536

“independent Professional Services" in the foregoing table includes mainly the fees accrued in the period by the
investment property agents and othar intermediaries involved in the sales.

e} Contribution to consolidated profit or loss

The contributions to consolidated profit or loss for the exercise ended 31 December 2016 and the 8 months
exercise ended 31 December 2015 by each company included in the consolidated group are as follows:

Thousands of euros

Entity 31.12.2016) 31.12.2015

Full consolidation:
Parent and consolidation adjustments (¥) 12.429 8.230
Neinor Norte, S.L.U. (126) (15.816)
Promociones Neinar i, S.L.U. (9 (28)
Promociones Neinor 2, $.1.U. 3 (13}
Promociones Neinor 3, S.L.U. 49 (67)
Promociones Neinor 4, S.L.U. 31) (34)
Promociones Neinor 5, S.L.U. 27 (12)
Neinor Peninsula, S.1..1, {6.408) (42.093)
Neinor Sur, S.1..U. (4.823) (21.033)
1.057 {70.866)

(*) There are no consolidation adjustments as of 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015,




f) Changes In trade provisions

The detail of "Changes in trade provisions" recognised in the accompanying consolidated income statement is

as follows:

Thousands of euros
Income / (Expense}
31.12.2016 | 31.12.2015
Change in trade provisions -Application of
impairments for sold stocks (sce Notes 6 and 12) 44,077 9.987
Change in trade provisions — Others (9.482) (79.605)
Impairment losses of inventories and investment properties
{see Notes 9 and 12) (9.501) {78.054)
Provision for bad debts (see Note 12) 19 {626)
Other provisions - {925)
Total change in trade provisions 34.595 (69.618)

23. Related party transactions

After the acquisition by Neinor Holdings, S.L., the Group's “related parties” are deemed to be, in addition to the
subsidiaries, associates and jointly-controlled entities, the sharsholders, the Parent's *key management personnel”
{its directors and managers, and their close family members) and the enfities over which key management
personnel may exercise significant influence or contral or by which they may be influenced. Specifically, related
party transactions are deemed to be transactions with parties outside the Group but with which there are ties as
defined in Ministry of Economy and Finance Order EHA/3050/2004, of 15 September, and in Spanish National
Securities Market Commission (CNMV) Circular 1/2005, of 1 Aprit. Pursuant to the aforementioned criteria, for
disclosure purposes the bank Banco de Santander, S.A. is considered a related party, due the link between a
senior executive and director of the bank and one of the directors. Also, in accordance with the definitions and
criteria contained in these provisions, Hudson Advisars Spain, S.L. and 1810 Capital Investments, S.L. are also
considered to be related companies, due to their refatedness to shareholders and directors.
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Thousands of Euros
Income Expenses
Net Revenues (Note 22.4) Cost of Sales — External | Financial
Services Financial Purchases Services costs
Exercise 2016 Sales Provided Incomes (Note 22.¢) (Note 22.d) | (Note 17)
Shareholders-
Neinor Holdings, 5.L. - - - - - 503
Other Group’s “related parties”-
Banco de Santander, S.A. - - 5 - - 6038
Hudson Advisors Spain, S.L. - - . - 981 -
1810 Capital Investments, S.L. (*) - - - - - -
- - 5 - 981 1111
(*) Company related to the Group since 25 April 2016. In this regard, the transactions accrued from that date have been Included.
Thousands of Euros
Income Expenses
Net Revenues (Note 22.4) Cost of Sales — External Financial
6 months exercise ended at 31 December Services Financial Purchases Services costs
2015 Sales Provided Incomes (Note 22.¢) (Note 22.d} | (Note 17)
Shareholders-
Neinor Holdings, S.L. - - - - - 193
Other Group’s “related parties”-
Banco de Santander, S.A. - - 9 - - 102
Hudson Advisors Spain, S.L. - . - - 1.174 -
- “ 9 - 1.174 295

The breakdown of the transactions carried out is as follows:

- The finance costs arose on the loan granted by Neinor Heldings, S.L.U. {see Note 17), which was repald in
full in 2018, and various loans and credit facilities with the related bank.

- The services provided at 31 December 2016 relate to the agreement for the provision of services relating to
the counselling and support in the preparation of the business plans, budgets and monitoring tasks in relation
lo the business plan by Hudson Advisors Spain, S.L., a related company as defined in Ministry of Economy
and Finance Order EHA/3050/2004, of 15 September, and in Spanish National Securities Market Commission
(CNMV) Circular 172005, of 1 April. Also, on 31 December 2016, the two parties mutually agreed o terminate
the aforementioned service contract, with no penalties for either of the two parties.

The Group recognised EUR 14 thousand in 2016 as additions to “Intangible Assets - Industrial Property” (see Note
7) as a result of the purchase of the brand “Neinor Homes” from its sole shareholder (Neinor Holdings, S.L.).

These transactions with related parties were performed on an arm's length basis. There are no obligations or

guarantees to related parties in addition to those previously disclosed in this Note or in Note 17 in relation to the
VAT facilities.
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In addition, on 31 December 2015, Neinor Holdings, S.L.U. forgave the debt from Global Endurance, S.L.U.,
amounting to EUR 8,684 thousand, registering to the effects of this financial annual statements, through its
recognition as reserves In the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the six-month reporting period ended
31 December 2015 (see Notes 2.h) and 15.¢}}

The balances held with companies related to the Group at 31 December 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

31 December 2016

Thousands of Eitros Short-term Current trade
Cash a cash Payables to sole Bank Advances to and other Customer
equivalents sharcholder borrowings Suppliers payables prepayments
Sharcholders-
Neinor Holdings, S.L.U. - 3,071 - - - -
Other Group’s “related parties”-
Banco Santander, S.A. 22,901 - 64.633 - - -
Hudson Advisor Spain, S.L. - - - 13 149 -
1810 Capital Investments, S.L. (*) - - - 7 - 1.676
22,901 3.071 04,633 20 149 1,676

{*)Company related to the Group since 25 Aprit 2016. In this regard, the balances accrued from that date have been included.

Sales commitments total EUR 1,935 thousand.

31 December 2015

Thousands of Euros Casl‘l acash Payables to sole Short-tern} Bank Current trade and
equivalents shareholder borrowings other payables

Shareholders-

Neinor Holdings, S.L.U. 99,080 - -

Other Group’s “related parties”-

Banco Santander, S.A. 66.964 26,962 -

Hudson Advisors Spain, S.L. - 291
00,964 99,080 26,962 291
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24. Legal inforimation reiating to the Board of Directors and Senlor executives

In the context of the transaction described in Note 1, on 14 May 2015, the Board of Directors of {the Parent and the
various Group subsidiaries was completely renswed. Accordingly, the directors of these companies ceased to
discharge their duties in representation of the Kutxabank Group and began to discharge their duties as
representatives of the current sole shareholder of the Parent.

Information regarding situations of conflict of interest involving the directors

In the exercises ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 the Parent's current and former direciors did
not perform any transactions with the Parent or the companies of the Group to which it belongs (Neinor Holdings
Group {Note 1)) thaf were outside the normal course of business or were not on an arm'’s length basis.

Also, during the current exercise and the former one the members of the Board of Directors of the Parent and
persons related thereto, as defined by the Spanish Limited Liability Companies Law, did not maintain refationships
with other companies that may represent a conflict of interest for them or the Parent. No notification was made to
the competent bodies in the sense indicated in Article 229 and, accordingly, these consolidated financial statements

do not present any disclosures in this connection.
Directors' compensation and other benefits

Directors have not received at 31 December 2016 and December 2015 any compensation as regards of their
Director's condition, The companies related to them provided to the Group and billed the amounts indicated in Note

23.

The Parent has taken out third-party liability insurance for directors and senior executives the cost of which amounts
to EUR 54 thousand.

The Parent has no pension obligations to the Directors.

The Parent has granted no advances, loans or guarantees to any of its Directors.

Senior executives' compensation and other benefits

The remuneration of the Parent’s senior executives and persons discharging similar duties, including those who

are simuitaneously members of the Board of Directors (one person), at 31 December 2016 and 31 Decamber 2015
is summarised as follows:

Thousands of euros
31.12.2016 31.12.2015
Number of Fixed and Fixed and
employees variable Other variable Other
31.12.2016{ 31.12.2015 | remuneration | Total Total remuneration |  Total Total
11 11 2.758 - 2.758 1112 - 1.112

The Parent has no pension obligations and has granted no advances, loans or guarantees to senior executives.
Also, there are no special incenlive plans on Neinor Homes, §.L.U. shares for the exercise ended 31 December

2016.
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25,

Auditors' fees

27,

Fees for audit services for the exercise ended 31 December 2016 for the different companies in the Neinor Homes
Group and subsidiaries, provided by the statutory auditor and companies related thereto have amounted to EUR
88 thousand (EUR 74 thousand at 31 Decamber 2015). Likewise, fees for verification services and other services
provided by the statutory auditor for the exercise ended at 31 December 2016 have amounted to EUR 22 thousand

and EUR 6 thousand, respectively.

Additionally, companies related to the statutory auditor have provided additional services amounting to EUR 75
thousand for the exercise ended 31 December 2016 (EUR 182 thousand for the 6 months exercise ended 31

December 2015).

26, _Environmental information

Due to the nature of the business in which the Neinor Home Group is engaged, the Group has no environmental
lfabilities, expenses, assels, provisions or contingencies that might have a significant impact on its equity, financial
position or profit or loss. Additionafly, the Group does not have any issue refated to emission rights.

Therefore, no specific environmental disclosures have been included in these notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Exposure to risk

The Group manages its capital to ensure that Group companies will be able te continue as profitable businesses
and to maximise shareholder value by achieving a balance between debt and equily. in this regard, the Group has
decided not to exceed in the long term a leverage ratic of 20% regarding Loan to Value (LTV) ratio and 40% in
relation to the ratio of Net Debt to the Net Value of the Group's Properties, which, in turn, will enable it to comply
with the covenants established with respect to its borrowings (see Note 17).

The Company’s financial risk management is centralised in its Comporate Financial Office, which has established
the mechanisms required to control exposure to credit and liquidity risk, as well as, though in a minor way, to
interest rate fluctuations risk. The main financial risks affecting the Combany are as follows:

Liquidity risk: the risk that the Group may not be able to mest payments to which it is already committed and/or
commitments arising from new Investments.

Market risk:

1. Interest rate risk: the impact that any rise in interest rates may have on finance costs charged to the income
statement,

2. Credit risk: the impact that defaults on raceivables may have on the income statement.
The risk management systems in place to mitigate these risks are detailed below:

Liquidity risk

The Group calculates its cash needs using a 12-month cash-fiow budget. This tool is used fo identify the amounts
and timing of cash needs and to plan for new funding requirements.

The Group's liquidity management policy is to arrange firm credit facilities and hold short-term financial investments

that are sufficient to meet ils forecast needs over periods that vary depending on the current situation and the
outlook for debt and capital markets,
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At 31 December 2016, the undrawn credit facilities and loans amounted to EUR 9.671 thousand (EUR 23.800
thousand at 31 December 2015) (see Note 17).

The Group's available cash position at 31 December 2016 was EUR 45.301 thousand (89.389 at 31 December
2015) of which EUR 21.373 thousand may only be drawn down in connection with the construction of the

developments, as indicated in Note14,

The Company's directors are confident that they will have sufficient funds to meet its cash requirements in the
future. Also, the Group entered into an administration management and property asset management contract with
Kutxabank, S.A. in 2015 which provides the Group with relatively stable annual revenue until the contract expires
in 2022.In this connection, ¢ash is managed at Neinor Homes Group level, in order to avoid cash strains in the
operaling subsidiaries and allow them to normally develop their properties that are forecasted to be financed by

third parties.
Market risk

Interest rate risk

Interest rate fluctuations affect the fair value of fixed-rate assets and liabilities and the future cash flows from
floating-rate assets and liabilities.

With the new financial structure described In Note 17 the Group has a higher exposure to the risk of interest rate
volatility, leading to a change in the Group's finance costs of approximately EUR +/- 2 million if the interest rate
applicable to the Group's current borrowings increases or decreases by 1% in relation to 2018 reporiing period

(see Note 17).

Credit risk

The Company does not have a significant credit risk exposure to third parties arising from its own property activity
since it collects substantially all of its sales when they are executed in a public deed, when the purchaser either
subrogates to the related portion of the properly developer loan or chooses a different method. The credit risk
arising from the deferred payments on land or building sales is offset through the securing of collateral by the
puschaser of the sefting of conditions subsequent in the event of non-payment. These conditions would give rise
to the recovery of ownership of the asset sold and the collection of compensation.

In general, the Group holds its cash and cash equivalents at banks with high credit ratings.

Events after the reporting period

In 2017, taking into consideration a potential stock market flotation of the Parent which would result in it being
reregistered from a private limited fiability company (“S.L.") to a public limited liability company {"S.A.") and could
lead to the loss of control by Neinor Holdings, S.L.U., which in turn is wholly owned by the Luxembourg company
LSREF3 Lion Investments, S.a.r.l. (see Note 1), which belongs to Lone Star Funds (see Note 17), the Group has
obtained a waiver/fapproval from the banks from which it has received any type of financing not o cancel such
financing early in the event that the flotation finally goes ahead, although they reserve the right to terminate the
financing early, in general, if at a time following the stock market flotation a third party were to launch, or be in a
key position, directly or indirectly, to launch a takeover bid. In any case, for each enity the effectiveness of the
waiver is conditional upon the stock market flotation taking place in the first nine months of 2017. Lastly, another
bank has made its waiver conditional on the obtainment of the approval, from the Kutxabank entities with which
the administration and management contract describad in Note 1 is entered into, of the possible change of control
that would take place following the stock market flotation. In this connection, on 2 and 8 February 2017 Kuixabank
and Caja Sur, respectively, confirmed that they approve the change of ¢ontrol on the date of the stock market
flotation, provided that the guarantees granted in the coniract are retained and the timetables envisaged in the
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transaction are respected. However, they reserve the right, at a subsequent date, to terminate the financing early
in same way as the other banks do, in the event of a takeover bid as describad above.

in addition, regarding this potential flotation, in 2017, the Board of Directors of Neinor Holdings, S.L.U. agread to
an incentive plan for the CEO and five members of the executive team of the Neinor Homes Group, which includes
fixed and variable remuneration payable parfly in cash and the rest in shares of the Group held by Lone Star
through Neinor Holdings, S.L.U. One portion of the incantive will be a fixed amount and will accrue as a result of
the admission to listing of the Parent (exit bonus, a fixed amount, for a total of EUR 14 million, approximately, of
which EUR 5.1 million are payable in cash on the date of the stock market flotation and the rest in shares at a pre-
set fixed price to be delivered in equal parts on each of the two anniversaries of the flotation) and the other portion,
variable, for a maximum total amount of EUR 13.5 million, to be delivered in shares, in a number to be determined
based on the share price on each of the three anniversaries following the initial takeover bid and the accrual of
which is subject to the achievement of annual increases in the share price during the last trimester prior to each of
the three anniversaries of the potential stock market flotation (the first reference date being the date of admission
to listing on the stock exchanges), subject in certain cases to minimum holding commitments, with the possibility
of accrual in proportion to the share price revaluations obtained on certain circumstances. Notwithstanding the
above, if at any given {ime during three years following the potential stock market flotation the shares trading price
reaches 152,09% of the initial share price (adjusted), the variable amount not already accrued, will entirely accrue.
In any event, it is established that the remuneration will be delivered to them directly by Neinor Holdings, S.L.U.
Bearing in mind payment of these bonuses will be mada in full by Neinor Holdings, S.L.U, (current sole sharehclder
and sole shareholder of the Company until its flotation, once the Parent has been reregistered from a private limited
liability company to a public limited liability company), the Group will recognise on an accrual basis the
corresponding contribution of the shareholder to consolidated equity for the same amount under "Staff Costs” from

2017.

Also, it has been approved a leng-term incentive plan payable in full in shares for 40 key employees, approximately,
including members of the management committee and the CEOQ, consisting of three consecuiive overlapping three-
year periods, i.e. 2017-2019, 2018-2020 and 2018-2021 in which the achievement measurement metrics are, in
thirds, EBITDA, the developer margin and shareholder return, with a downward correction coefficlent of 10%
regarding the achievement of the aforementioned metrics determined by the evolution of the average Loan to Value
(LTV) ratic in excess of a target ratio. Minimum amounts below which the incentives do not accrue and the
possibility of an extra bonus of up to 150% were established, The sale of the number of shares thus acquired is
restricted for periods of between one ysar and six months for the CEO and the members of the management
committee. The shares 1o be received by each participant will be determined by the incentive attributed to each
participant in the plan (in ranges of between EUR 10 thousand and EUR 250 thousand), the price of the shares for
each thres-year period {average of the share price in the 20 trading sessions prior to the commancement of each
cycle) and by the achievement of objectives (range betwean 0% and 150%). Shares acquired under this plan are
subject to lock-up commitments for periods of one year and 6 months for both the CEO and members of the
management commiltes. In the case of the CEC and members of the management committee, this incentive is
subject to a repayment clause if certain circumstances arise. The cost of this long-tarm incentive plan will be
assumed by the Neinor Homes Group, but it is not quantified a precise calculation currently. There are no additional

share-based incentive plans for employees.

The cost of the stock market flotation will be shared by the current sole shareholder Neinor Holdings, S.L.U. and
Neinor Homes, §.L.U. The maximum cost to be assumed diractly by the Parent will be approximately EUR 2 million.

Also, as part of the sale and purchase transaction described in Note 1, the Group has recognised real estate assets
which have not been able to be registered in the Property Register, and which Kutxabank, S.A, has guaranteed to
repurchass if they have not been registered by May 2017 {see Note 12). In addition, as a result of this transaction,
as explained in Note 16, there are claims relating to assets owned by the various Group companies which, in the
event of unfavourable judgments, would be covered by the Kutxabank Group. In relation to both matters, in
February 2017, an agreement was established batween the companies making up the Neinor Homes Group and
Neinor Holdings, S.L.U., of which Kutxabank, $.A. is aware, whereby exercise of such rights and the possible
remuneration to which they may give rise, will be carried cut and obtained, respectively, by the Neinor Homes
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Group and, as the case may be, Neinor Holdings, S.L.U. wili only provide information for such shares to be
exercised without any ioss.

Lastly, with respect to the first- and second-ranking security interests on all the shares of Neinor Homes, S.L.U.
(see Notes 12 and 15), Neinor Holdings, S.L.U. and the Kutxabank Group, have entered into an agresment, subject
to certain guarantees provided by Neinor Holdings, S.L.U., among others,. to the stock market flotation taking place
prior to 30 June 2017, the payment of the deferred price of the transaction described in Note 1 {for which revenues
obtained from the potential stock market flotation are going to be retained) and the calculation of the maximum
number of shares of the Parent that will be issued in the market on the occasion of the stock market flotation
(“transferable shares”), whereby the Kuixabank Group undertook, at least five working days prior to the date
sstablished as the date envisaged for the registration by the Spanish National Securities Market Commission of
the prospectus for the stock market flotation, to grant the related deeds of discharge of the first- and second-ranking

security interests on the transferable shares.

29. Explanation added for translation fo English

These consalidated financial statements are presented on the basis of the regulatory financial reporting framework
applicable to the Group in Spain (see Note 2). Certain accounting practices applied by the Group that conform with
that regulatary framework may not conform with other generally accepted accounting principles and rules,
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Appendix |

“Scope of consolidation”

% direct and indirect
ownership
Registered
Company address Activity 31.12.2016 | 31.12.2015 Shareholder Auditors
Neinor Norte, S.1L.1J, Bilbao Real Esfate 100% 100% Neinor Homes, S.L.U. | Deloitte, S.L.
Development
Promaociones Neinor 1, S.L.U, Bilbao Real Estate 100% 100% Neinor Norte, S.L.U. 1 Deloiite, S.L.
Development
Promociones Neinor 2, S.L.U. Bilbao Real Estate 100% 100% Neirtor Norte, S.L..U. | Deloitte, S.L.
Development
Promociones Neinor 3,S8LU Bilbao Real Estate 100% 100% Neinor Norte, S.L.U. Deloitte, S.L.
Development
Promociones Neinor 4, S.L.U. Bifbao Real Estate 100% 100% Neinor Norte, S.L..U. | Deloitte, S.L.
Development
Promaociones Neinor 5, S.L.U. Bilbao Real Estate 100% 100% Neinor Norle, S.L.U. | Deloilte, S.L.
Development
Neinor Peninsula, $.L.U. Coérdoba Real Estate 100% 100% Neinor Homes, S.L.U. | Deloilte, S.L.
Development
Neinor Sur, 8,L.U. (*) Cérdoba Real Eslate 100% 100% Neinor Penfnsula, Deloitte, S.L.
Development S.L.U.
{*) Neinor Sur, 8.L.U. tock cwnership of Global Endurance, S.1.U. during the 6 months perod ended 31 December 2015
{Notes 2hand 15¢
Total equity at December 31, 2016 (thousands of euros)
Company Share Previous years'
capital Reserves losses Profit / {Loss) Ctlher equily Total equity
Neinor Norie, S.L.U. 235.081 {17 - (126) - 234.948
Promociongs Neinor 1, S.L.U. 301 59 (27 9 - 324
Promaocicnes Neinor 2, S.L.U. 880 170 (13) 3 - 1.040
Promociones Neinor 3, 8.L.U. 594 117 (67 49 - 693
Promociones Neingr 4, S.L.U. 2.981 592 {34) {31} - 3.508
Promociones Neinor 5, S.L.U. 2.979 592 {12) (27 - 3.632
Neinor Peninsula, S.L.U. 558.422 - - {6.408) - 552.014
Neinor Sur, S.L.U. 158.981 120 - (4.824) - 154,277
Total equity at December 31, 2015 (thousands of euros)
Company Share Previous years'
capital Reserves logses Profit / {Loss) Other equity Total eguity
Neinor Norte, S.1..U. 314.630 3N (28.325) {15.817) - 270.457
Promogciones Neinor 1, S.L.U. 301 60 [(6)] (27) - 334
Promociones Neinor 2, S.L.U. 880 176 {0} (13) 1.043
Promociones Neinor 3, S.L.U. 594 118 - {67) - 646
Promociones Neinor 4, S.L.U. 2.981 507 - {34) - 3.544
Promociones Neinor 5, S.L.U. 2,979 597 ()] (12} - 3.564
Neinor Peninsula, S.L.U. 624.945 (3) {6.229) {42.094) 12.330 588.949
Neinor Sur, S.L.U. 240.565 15.535 {86.940) {21.033) 10.984 159111
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Appendix I
“Contributions to Neinor Homes, S.L.U. and subsidiaries”

Theusands of euros
Harri Iparra, Harri Inmuebles, Total
S.AU. (formerly | Harri Kartera, S.AU. (formerly | contributions
Neinor Barria, S.AU. (formerly | Yerecial, Neinor Inmuebles, to Neinor
S.ALLL) Neinor, $.A.U.) S.L.U. S.AU) Norte, 8.L.U.
Shares in
Group companies - - - - -
Inventories, investment
property and advances 171.115 76.125 5477 25.761 278.478
Other current assets 3 20 K} 26
Total assets 171.118 76.145 5477 25,764 278.504
Liabilities- - - - -
Payable to the Group (4.381) - - - (4.381)
Total liabilities (4.381) - - - (4.381)
Negative reserves - - - - -
Net assets 166,737 76.145 5477 25.764 274,123
Thousands of euros
Harri Hegoalde
2, 8.A.U.
Harri Hegoalde | (formerly Neinor Total
1, S.AU. Tbérica coniributions to
CPCE, (formerly Neinor Inversiones, Neinor
S.L.U. Ibérica, S.A.U.) S5.A0) Penfnsula, S.L.U.
Sharesin : : 73.246 73.246
Group companies
Inventories, investment property and advances 76.993 73.656 228.802 379.451
Other current assets 5.491 - - 5.491
Total assets 82,484 73.656 302.048 458,188
Liabilities-
Payable to the Group - - (2.071) (2.071)
Other current labilities - - - -
Total liabilities - - (2.07D) (2.071)
Negative reserves - - - -
Net assets 82.484 73.656 299,977 456.117
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Appendix Il

“Contributions to Neinor Homes, S.L.U. and subsidiaries”

Thousands of euros

Neinor Sur, Neinor Sur, Neinor Sur, Neinor Sur, Neinor Sur, Neinor Sur, | Neinor Sur,
S.AUL S.AUL S.AUL S.A.U. S.AU. S.ALU. S.AUL
(forinerly {formerly (forimerly (formerly {formerly (formerly (formerly
CajaSur CajaSur CajaSur CajaSur CajaSur CajaSur CajaSur
inmobiliaria, [ Inmobiliaria, | Inmobiliaria, Inmobiliaria, Inmobiliaria, | Inmobiliaria, | Inmobiliaria,
S.A.U) S.A.U) S.A.U) S.A.U) S.AU.) S.ALL) S.A.U.)
Shares in
Group companies - - - - - - -
Inventories,
investment property
and advances 168.149 309 765 464 3,370 3373 176.430
Other current assets 25.128 2,038 588 839 339 247 29.179
Total assets 193,277 2.347 1,353 1.303 3.709 3.620 205.609
Liabilities-
Payable fo the Group {115.163) (2.541) (16.346) (1.784) (9.000) (8.989) (153.823)
Other current and
non-current ligbilities (5.006) (45) ©2) (531) o) o (5.618)
Total liabilities {120.169) (2.586) {16.368) (2.315) {9.007) (8.996) (159.441)
Negative reserves (101) (239 (15.015) (1.012) (5.298) (5.296) (26.961)
Net assets 73.108 - - - - - 73.108
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